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TO MY FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS:

2017 was an exciting year for Stratus Properties. We increased net income to $3.9 million, $0.47 per share, reduced consolidated
debt by 24%, recognized a significant portion of the deferred gain on the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, and returned $8.1 million in
capital to stockholders by way of a $1.00 per share special cash dividend. Our sale of The Oaks at Lakeway demonstrates the strength
of our development strategy, which we continued to advance throughout 2017 with increased capital expenditure investments and
proactive development, leasing and marketing activities. Moving forward in 2018, we intend to continue focusing on our active
development plan, which has played a significant role in Stratus Properties generating a total stockholder return of 262% over the last
five years, which far exceeded comparable returns from peer real estate companies (39%), the Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index
(56%) and the S&P 500 (101%).

Our expansive development portfolio consists of existing and future commercial, multi-family and single-family projects, several
of which are in the development stage. In 2017, we completed construction of West Killeen Market, an HEB-anchored retail
development in Killeen, on schedule and under budget and made significant progress in advancing our other development projects by:

• securing project financing and commencing construction of Lantana Place, a mixed-use development in southwest Austin;

• securing project financing and commencing construction of Jones Crossing, an HEB-anchored mixed use development in
College Station;

• securing project financing and commencing construction of Santal Phase II, a multi-family development located adjacent to
Santal Phase I in Barton Creek;

• securing final building permits for the St. Mary, a new multi-family development we plan to construct in Circle C; and

• advancing development plans for Magnolia, a new HEB-anchored retail development project we plan to construct in
Magnolia.

We also secured approval from the City of Magnolia and the State of Texas for a new Municipal Utility District (MUD), which will
allow us to recoup approximately $26 million of future road and utility infrastructure costs over the life of the Magnolia development
project.

We believe our active development plan benefits from a diverse portfolio of retail, residential, office, entertainment, and hotel
properties. In particular, steadier cash flows from our Leasing, Entertainment and Hotel segments support our longer term
development projects. Our Leasing segment includes Santal Phase I, a garden-style apartment complex in the upscale Barton Creek
area that was completed in 2016 and that is now 95% leased. Based on the success of Santal Phase I, we elected to develop Santal
Phase II, which will add 212 units to the overall complex. Our Hotel segment includes the W Austin Hotel in downtown Austin,
which generated revenue per available room of $253 in 2017, fourth overall among all Texas hotels, despite increased competition
from new hotels. Our Entertainment segment includes the world famous Austin City Limits Live music venue, site of the longest
running music series in American history, and 3TEN ACL Live, a popular music venue that we opened in 2016 to host more intimate
shows. 2017 was a record year for ACL Live, with more than 221,000 tickets sold for 224 events, including sold-out shows by Dave
Chappelle, Sting, The Zac Brown Band, Don Henley, Willie Nelson and Diana Ross. We believe that our full-cycle development
process creates a strong synergy across our operating segments, which enables us to generate high returns for our fellow stockholders.

The majority of our real estate assets are located in the Austin metropolitan area, which continues to experience significant
population growth and development. We continue to successfully leverage the expertise and relationships that we have developed
through our strong position in the Austin market to expand our developments to other select, fast-growing Texas markets such as
Killeen, Magnolia and College Station. Our expansion beyond Austin has been facilitated by our positive working relationships with
our tenants, lenders, regulators, community stakeholders and government officials. In our view, our ability to foster these key
relationships in the communities where we invest has been and will continue to be one of our greatest strengths.

We would like to thank our employees for their commitment and hard work, which has contributed to our important progress
during 2017. Looking ahead to 2018, we plan to continue our successful program of actively developing our properties and
strategically marketing and selling them at appropriate times to maximize stockholder value. We remain confident in the
attractiveness of our W Austin Hotel, Santal multi-family development and ACL Live and 3TEN ACL Live entertainment venues, and
our ability to use cash flows generated by these assets to support our development projects. We will continue leveraging our



competitive strengths to take advantage of favorable economic conditions in Texas generally, and Austin in particular. We will benefit
from the astute guidance and oversight of our Board of Directors as we continue to evaluate markets, invest in new developments and
capture opportunities to enhance the value of our properties to create value for shareholders.

Very truly yours,

William H. Armstrong III
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

April 4, 2018
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PART I 

Items 1. and 2.  Business and Properties. 

Except as otherwise described herein or the context otherwise requires, all references to “Stratus,” “we,” “us” and 
“our” in this Form 10-K refer to Stratus Properties Inc. and all entities owned or controlled by Stratus Properties Inc. 
All of our periodic reports filed with or furnished to the United States (U.S.) Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including our annual 
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those 
reports are available, free of charge, through our website, www.stratusproperties.com, or by submitting a written 
request via mail to Stratus Investor Relations, 212 Lavaca St., Suite 300, Austin, Texas, 78701. These reports and 
amendments are available through our website or by request as soon as reasonably practicable after we 
electronically file or furnish such material with or to the SEC. 

All references to “Notes” herein refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located in Part II, Item 8. of 
this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a diversified real estate company engaged primarily in the acquisition, entitlement, development, 
management, operation and sale of commercial, hotel, entertainment, and multi-family and single-family residential 
real estate properties, primarily located in the Austin, Texas area, and also including projects in certain other select 
markets in Texas. 

We generate revenues and cash flows from the sale of developed properties, rental income from our leased 
properties and from our hotel and entertainment operations. Developed property sales can include an individual 
tract of land that has been developed and permitted for residential use or a developed lot with a home already built 
on it. We may sell properties under development, undeveloped properties or leased properties if opportunities arise 
that we believe will maximize overall asset value as part of our business plan. See below and Note 10 for further 
discussion of our operating segments.

Our principal executive offices are located in Austin, Texas, and our company was incorporated under the laws of 
the state of Delaware on March 11, 1992. Stratus Properties Inc. was formed to hold, operate and develop the 
domestic real estate and oil and gas properties of our former parent company. We sold all of our oil and gas 
properties during the 1990s and have since focused solely on our real estate properties. Our overall strategy has 
been to enhance the value of our properties by securing and maintaining development entitlements and developing 
and building real estate projects on these properties for sale or investment. We have also pursued opportunities for 
new projects that offer the possibility of acceptable returns and risks. See "Business Strategy" in Part II, Items 7. 
and 7A. for further discussion.

Operations

A description of our four operating segments follows.

Real Estate Operations. The acreage under development and undeveloped as of December 31, 2017, that 
comprise our real estate operations is presented in the following table. Acreage under development includes real 
estate for which infrastructure work over the entire property has been completed, is currently being completed or is 
able to be completed and for which necessary permits have been obtained. The undeveloped acreage shown in the 
table below is presented according to anticipated uses for multi-family units, single-family lots and commercial 
development based upon our understanding of the properties’ existing entitlements. However, because of the 
nature and cost of the approval and development process and uncertainty regarding market demand for a particular 
use, there is no assurance that the undeveloped acreage will ever be developed. Undeveloped acreage (i.e., 
planning, infrastructure or development work is not currently in progress on such property) includes real estate that 
can be sold “as is.” 
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 Under Development Undeveloped  

Single
Family

Multi-
family Commercial Total

Single
Family

Multi-
family Commercial Total

Total
Acreage

Austin:         
Barton Creek 4 38 — 42 512 262 394 1,168 1,210
Circle C — — — — — 36 216 252 252
Lantana — — 11 11 — — 44 44 55
Other — — — — 7 — — 7 7

Lakewaya — — — — 35 — — 35 35
Magnolia — — — — — — 124 124 124
Jones Crossing — — 72 72 — — — — 72
Camino Real, San Antonio — — — — — — 2 2 2
Total 4 38 83 125 554 298 780 1,632 1,757

a.  On February 15, 2017, we sold The Oaks at Lakeway, which included 52 acres of land under development at December 31, 
2016, but we retained 34.7 acres of undeveloped land adjacent to the project (see "Properties - The Oaks at Lakeway" below 
and Note 11). 

 
Revenue from our real estate operations segment accounted for 14 percent of our total revenue for 2017, 13 
percent for 2016 and 18 percent for 2015. 

The following table summarizes the estimated development potential, including 212 multi-family units and 252,913 
square feet of commercial space currently under development, of our acreage as of December 31, 2017: 

  
 Single Family Multi-family Commercial
 (lots) (units) (gross square feet)
Barton Creek 175 1,794 88,081
Lakeway 100 — —
Circle C — 297 674,942
Lantana — — 480,000
Magnolia — — 351,000
Jones Crossing — — 258,000
Flores Street — 6 —
Total 275 2,097 1,852,023

Leasing Operations. Our principal leasing operations at December 31, 2017, consisted of (1) 38,316 square feet of 
office space, including 9,000 square feet occupied by our corporate office, and 18,327 square feet of retail space at 
the W Austin Hotel & Residences, (2) a 22,366-square-foot retail complex representing the first phase of Barton 
Creek Village, (3) a 44,000-square-foot retail complex at West Killeen Market and (4) the Santal Phase I multi-
family project, a garden-style apartment complex consisting of 236 units. In February 2017, we sold The Oaks at 
Lakeway, the Barton Creek Village bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land. 

Revenue from our leasing operations segment accounted for 10 percent of our total revenue for 2017, 12 percent 
for 2016 and 7 percent for 2015.

Hotel. The W Austin Hotel, which is part of the W Austin Hotel & Residences, includes 251 luxury rooms and suites, 
a full service spa, gym, rooftop pool and 9,750 square feet of meeting space. We have an agreement with Starwood 
Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc., a subsidiary of Marriott International, Inc. (Starwood) for the management of hotel 
operations at the W Austin Hotel. Revenue per available room for the W Austin Hotel, which is calculated by dividing 
total room revenue by the average total rooms available during the year, was $253 for 2017, $259 for 2016 and 
$279 for 2015. 

Revenue from our hotel segment accounted for 47 percent of our total revenue for 2017 and 51 percent for each of 
2016 and 2015. 
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Entertainment.  The entertainment space at the W Austin Hotel & Residences is occupied by Austin City Limits Live 
at the Moody Theater (ACL Live) and includes a live music and entertainment venue and production studio with a 
maximum capacity of approximately 3,000 people. In addition to hosting concerts and private events, ACL Live is 
the home of Austin City Limits, a television program showcasing popular music legends. ACL Live hosted 224 
events in 2017 with estimated attendance of 297,100, compared with 223 events in 2016 with estimated attendance 
of 237,000 and 210 events in 2015 with estimated attendance of 245,000. As of February 28, 2018, ACL Live has 
events booked through September 2019. Entertainment revenue also reflects revenues associated with events 
hosted at venues other than ACL Live, including 3TEN ACL Live. The 3TEN ACL Live venue, which is located on 
the site of the W Austin Hotel & Residences, opened in March 2016 and has a capacity of approximately 350 
people. The 3TEN ACL Live venue hosted 228 events in 2017 with estimated attendance of 40,600 and 162 events 
in 2016 with estimated attendance of 25,500. As of February 28, 2018, 3TEN ACL Live has events booked through 
August 2019.

Revenue from our entertainment segment accounted for 29 percent of our total revenue for 2017 and 24 percent for 
both 2016 and 2015. 

For further information about our operating segments see “Results of Operations” in Part II, Items 7. and 7A. See 
Note 10 for a summary of our revenues, operating income and total assets by operating segment.

Properties

Our Austin-area properties include the following:

Barton Creek

Amarra Drive.  In 2008, we substantially completed the development of Amarra Drive Phase II, which consists of 35 
lots on 51 acres. During each of 2017 and 2016, we sold one Phase II lot. As of December 31, 2017, 12 Phase II 
lots remain unsold. During January 2018, one Phase II lot was sold.

In first-quarter 2015, we substantially completed the development of Amarra Drive Phase III, which consists of 64 
lots on 166 acres. In 2017, we identified four lots on which to build homes and began construction on two homes. 
We sold six Phase III lots during each of 2017 and 2016. As of December 31, 2017, 38 Phase III lots remained 
unsold. 

In March 2018, we entered into a contract to sell one Amarra Drive Phase II lot and eight Amarra Drive Phase III lots 
for a total of $5.9 million. In accordance with the contract, the parties are required to close on the sale of these lots 
ratably before December 31, 2018. If the purchaser fails to close on the sale of the minimum number of lots by any 
of the specified closing dates, we may elect to terminate the contract but would retain the related $45 thousand 
earnest money. In addition, as of February 28, 2018, six Phase III lots were under contract, one of which closed in 
March.

The Villas at Amarra Drive (Amarra Villas) townhome project is a 20-unit development for which we completed 
sitework in late 2015. The townhomes average approximately 4,400 square feet and are being marketed as "lock 
and leave" properties, with golf course access and cart garages. During 2017, construction of the first five 
townhomes was completed and construction of the next two townhomes began. One of the completed townhomes 
was sold during 2017. As of February 28, 2018, two townhomes, currently under construction, were under contract.

Santal. The Santal Phase I multi-family project, a garden-style apartment complex, was completed within budget in 
August 2016 and consists of 236 units. As of February 28, 2018, approximately 95 percent of the units were leased. 
During 2017, we obtained financing and began construction of Santal Phase II, a 212-unit garden style, multi-family 
development located adjacent to Santal Phase I. 

Barton Creek Village. The first phase of Barton Creek Village includes a 22,366-square-foot retail complex and a 
3,085-square-foot bank building. In February 2017, we sold the 3,085-square-foot bank building in Barton Creek 
Village and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land for $3.1 million (see Note 11). We intend to explore 
opportunities to sell the retail complex later this year depending on market conditions. 
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Circle C Community

Effective August 2002, the city of Austin (the City) granted final approval of a development agreement (the Circle C 
settlement), which firmly established all essential municipal development regulations applicable to our Circle C 
properties until 2032. The City also provided us $15.0 million of cash incentives in connection with the future 
development of our Circle C and other Austin-area properties. These incentives, which are in the form of credit bank 
capacity, can be used for City fees and for reimbursement of certain infrastructure costs. Annually, we may elect to 
sell up to $1.5 million of the incentives to other developers for their use in paying City fees related to their projects 
as long as the projects are within the desired development zone, as defined within the Circle C settlement. As of 
December 31, 2017, we have permanently used $12.7 million of the $15.0 million City-based development fee 
credits, including cumulative amounts sold to third parties totaling $5.1 million. We also had $0.5 million in credit 
bank capacity in use as temporary fiscal deposits as of December 31, 2017. Available credit bank capacity was $2.6 
million at December 31, 2017.

We are developing the Circle C community based on the entitlements secured in our Circle C settlement with the 
City. Our Circle C settlement, as amended in 2004, permits development of 1.16 million square feet of commercial 
space, 504 multi-family units and 830 single-family residential lots. 

Meridian. Meridian is an 800-lot residential development at the Circle C community. Development of the final phase 
of Meridian, which consisted of 57 one-acre lots, was completed in 2014. We sold the last 12 lots during 2017 and 
19 lots during each of 2016 and 2015. 

The St. Mary. We have secured final building permits for The St. Mary, a 240-unit multi-family development in the 
Circle C community, and, subject to obtaining construction financing, intend to commence construction by mid-2018.

As of December 31, 2017, our Circle C community had remaining entitlements for 674,942 square feet of 
commercial space and 297 multi-family units, including the 240 units planned for The St. Mary multi-family 
development. 

Lantana

Lantana is a partially developed, mixed-use real-estate development project. As of December 31, 2017, we had 
remaining entitlements for approximately 480,000 square feet of office and retail use on 55 acres. Regional utility 
and road infrastructure is in place with capacity to serve Lantana at full build-out as permitted under our existing 
entitlements. In 2017, construction commenced on the first phase of Lantana Place, a 320,000 square foot mixed-
use development project in southwest Austin. The first phase will be anchored by a 12-screen Moviehouse, a state 
of the art movie theater that provides a high-quality dining experience. We expect to complete construction of 
Moviehouse in mid-2018. 

The W Austin Hotel & Residences

In December 2006, we acquired a two-acre city block in downtown Austin for $15.1 million to develop a multi-use 
project. In 2008, we entered into a joint venture with Canyon-Johnson Urban Fund II, L.P. (Canyon-Johnson) for the 
development of the W Austin Hotel & Residences. In September 2015, we completed the purchase of Canyon-
Johnson's approximate 58 percent interest in the joint venture that owned the W Austin Hotel & Residences. See 
Note 2 for further discussion.  

The W Austin Hotel & Residences contains a 251-room luxury hotel, 159 residential condominium units, 38,316 
square feet of leasable office space, including 9,000 square feet occupied by our corporate office, 18,327 square 
feet of retail space, including 3TEN ACL Live, and entertainment space occupied by ACL Live. No sales of 
condominium units occurred in the last three years and as of December 31, 2017, two condominium units remained 
unsold and are being marketed.
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The Oaks at Lakeway 

In 2013 and 2014, we acquired 87 acres in the greater Austin area to develop The Oaks at Lakeway project, an 
HEB Grocery Company, L.P. (HEB)-anchored retail project planned for 236,739 square feet of commercial space. 
The HEB store opened in October 2015, and in February 2017, we sold The Oaks at Lakeway for $114.0 million in 
cash. We retained 34.7 acres of undeveloped property, which is zoned for residential, hotel and civic uses (see Note 
11). 

Our other Texas properties and development projects include:

Magnolia 

In 2014, we acquired 142 acres in the greater Houston area to develop the Magnolia project, an HEB-anchored 
retail project planned for 351,000 square feet of commercial space. Planning and infrastructure work by the city of 
Magnolia is complete and road expansion by the Texas Department of Transportation is in progress and expected to 
be completed in early 2018. The HEB grocery store is currently expected to open in 2020. 

West Killeen Market

In 2015, we acquired approximately 21 acres in Killeen, Texas, to develop the West Killeen Market project, an HEB-
anchored retail project with 44,000 square feet of commercial space and three pad sites adjacent to a 90,000 
square-foot HEB grocery store. Construction began in August 2016 and was completed on schedule and under 
budget in June 2017. The HEB store opened in April 2017. As of December 31, 2017, leases for approximately 60 
percent of the space at West Killeen Market have been executed, and leasing for the remaining space continues. 
We intend to explore opportunities to sell West Killeen Market later this year depending on leasing progress and 
market conditions.

Jones Crossing

In 2017, we acquired a 72-acre tract of land in College Station, Texas, for Jones Crossing, a HEB-anchored, mixed-
use project. The Jones Crossing project is expected to total approximately 258,000 square feet of commercial 
space, including a 106,000 square-foot HEB grocery store. Construction of the retail component of the Jones 
Crossing project began in September 2017, and the HEB grocery store is expected to open in August 2018. 

Competition
 
We operate in highly competitive industries, namely the real estate development, leasing, hotel and entertainment 
industries. In the real estate development industry, we compete with numerous public and private developers of 
varying sizes, ranging from local to national in scope. As a result, we may be competing for investment 
opportunities, financing and potential buyers with developers that may possess greater financial, marketing or other 
resources than we have. Our prospective customers generally have a variety of choices of new and existing homes 
and homesites when considering a purchase. We attempt to differentiate our properties primarily on the basis of 
community design, quality, uniqueness, amenities, location and developer reputation.

The leasing industry is highly fragmented among individuals, partnerships and public and private entities, with no 
dominant single entity or person. Although we may compete against large sophisticated owners and operators, 
owners and operators of any size can provide effective competition for prospective tenants. We compete for tenants 
primarily on the basis of property location, rent charged, and the design and condition of improvements.

In the hotel industry, competition is generally based on quality and consistency of rooms, restaurant and meeting 
facilities and services, attractiveness of location, price and other factors. Management believes that we compete 
favorably in these areas. Our W Austin Hotel competes with other hotels and resorts in our geographic market, 
including hotels owned locally and facilities owned by national and international chains. 

In the entertainment industry, we compete with other venues in Austin, Texas, and venues in other markets for 
artists likely to perform in the Austin, Texas region. Touring artists have several alternatives to our venue when 
scheduling tours. Some of our competitors in venue management have a greater number of venues in certain 
markets and may have greater financial resources in those markets. We differentiate our entertainment businesses 
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by providing a quality live music experience and promoting our ACL Live entertainment space through KLRU's 
broadcast of Austin City Limits.

See Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors" for further discussion.

Credit Facility and Other Financing Arrangements

Obtaining and maintaining adequate financing is a critical component of our business. For information about our 
credit facility and other financing arrangements, see “Capital Resources and Liquidity - Credit Facility and Other 
Financing Arrangements” in Part II, Items 7. and 7A. and Note 6.

Regulation and Environmental Matters

Our real estate investments are subject to extensive local, city, county and state rules and regulations regarding 
permitting, zoning, subdivision, utilities and water quality as well as federal rules and regulations regarding air and 
water quality and protection of endangered species and their habitats. Such regulation has delayed and may 
continue to delay development of our properties and may result in higher development and administrative costs. 
See Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors" for further discussion.

We have made, and will continue to make, expenditures for the protection of the environment with respect to our 
real estate development activities. Emphasis on environmental matters will result in additional costs in the future. 
Based on an analysis of our operations in relation to current and presently anticipated environmental requirements, 
we currently do not anticipate that these costs will have a material adverse effect on our future operations or 
financial condition.

Employees

At December 31, 2017, we had a total of 139 employees, 48 of which were full-time employees, located at our 
Austin, Texas headquarters. We believe we have a good relationship with our employees, none of whom are 
represented by a union. Since 1996, certain services necessary for our business and operations, including certain 
administrative, financial reporting and other services, have been performed by FM Services Company (FM 
Services) pursuant to a services agreement. FM Services is a wholly owned subsidiary of Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 
Either party may terminate the services agreement at any time upon 60 days notice or earlier upon mutual written 
agreement.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

This report contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of U.S. federal securities laws. Forward-
looking statements are all statements other than statements of historical facts, such as statements regarding 
projections or expectations related to operational and financial performance or liquidity, reimbursements for 
infrastructure costs, financing and regulatory matters, development plans and sales of properties, leasing activities, 
timeframes for development, construction and completion of our projects, capital expenditures, liquidity and capital 
resources, the impact of tax reform on our operations, and other plans and objectives of management for future 
operations and activities. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements. We caution 
readers that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and our actual results may differ 
materially from those anticipated, projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Important factors that 
can cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements include the 
following:

Risks Relating to our Business and Industries

We need significant amounts of cash to service our debt.  If we are unable to generate sufficient cash to 
service our debt, our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations could be negatively affected.

Our business strategy requires us to rely on cash flow from operations and our debt agreements as our primary 
sources of funding for our liquidity needs. As of December 31, 2017, our outstanding debt totaled $221.5 million and 
our cash and cash equivalents totaled $14.6 million. Our level of indebtedness could have significant 
consequences. For example, it could:
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• Increase our vulnerability to adverse changes in economic and industry conditions;

• Require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations and proceeds from asset 
sales to pay or provide for our indebtedness, thus reducing the availability of cash flows to fund working 
capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, investments and other general corporate purposes;

• Limit our flexibility to plan for, or react to, changes in our business and the market in which we operate;

• Place us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors that have less debt; and

• Limit our ability to borrow money to fund our working capital, capital expenditures, debt service 
requirements and other financing needs.

Historically, much of our debt has been renewed or refinanced in the ordinary course of business. Any deterioration 
of current economic conditions in our areas of operations could impact our ability to refinance our debt and obtain 
renewals or replacement of credit enhancement devices on favorable terms or at all. In the future we may not be 
able to obtain sufficient external sources of liquidity on attractive terms, if at all, or otherwise renew, extend or 
refinance a significant portion of our outstanding debt scheduled to become due in the near future. There can be no 
assurance that we will maintain cash reserves and generate sufficient cash flow from operations in an amount 
sufficient to enable us to service our debt or to fund our other liquidity needs. Any of these occurrences may have a 
material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. For example, our inability to 
extend, repay or refinance our debt when it becomes due, including upon a default or acceleration event, could 
force us to sell properties on unfavorable terms or ultimately result in foreclosure on properties pledged as 
collateral, which could result in a loss of our investment and harm our reputation. 

The terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness include restrictive covenants and require that certain 
financial ratios be maintained. For example, the minimum stockholders' equity covenant contained in several of our 
debt agreements requires us to maintain total stockholders’ equity of no less than $110.0 million. At December 31, 
2017, our total stockholders’ equity was $127.3 million and, as a result, we were in compliance with this covenant. 
Failure to comply with any of the covenants in our loan documents could result in a default that may, if not cured, 
accelerate the payment under our debt obligations which would likely have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, 
financial condition and results of operations. Our ability to comply with our covenants will depend upon our future 
economic performance. These covenants may adversely affect our ability to finance our future operations, satisfy 
our capital needs or engage in other business activities that may be desirable or advantageous to us.

In order to maintain compliance with the covenants in our debt agreements and carry out our business plan, we 
may need to raise additional capital through equity transactions or obtain waivers or modifications of covenants 
from our lenders. Such additional funding may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all, when needed. We also 
may need to incur additional indebtedness in the future in the ordinary course of business to fund our development 
projects and our operations. There can be no assurance that such additional financing will be available when 
needed or, if available, offered on acceptable terms. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the risks 
described above could intensify.

We are periodically rated by nationally recognized credit rating agencies. Any downgrades in our credit rating could 
impact our ability to borrow by increasing borrowing costs as well as limiting our access to capital. In addition, a 
downgrade could require us to post cash collateral and/or letters of credit, which would adversely affect our cash 
flow and liquidity.

Additionally, a portion of our outstanding debt bears interest at variable rates. See “Disclosures About Market Risks” 
in Part II, Items 7. and 7A. for more information.

We are vulnerable to concentration risks because our operations are almost exclusive to the Austin, Texas 
market.

Our real estate operations are primarily, and our hotel and entertainment venue operations are entirely, located in 
Austin, Texas. While our real estate operations have expanded to include select Texas markets outside of Austin, 
including College Station, Magnolia and West Killeen, the geographic concentration of the majority of our operations 
and limited number of projects we may have under development at a given time means that our operations are 
more vulnerable to local economic downturns and adverse project-specific risks than those of larger, more 
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diversified companies. The performance of the Austin economy greatly affects our sales and consequently the 
underlying values of our properties. Our geographic concentration may create increased vulnerability during 
regional economic downturns, which can significantly affect our financial condition and results of operations. See 
"Overview - Real Estate Market Conditions" in Part II, Items 7. and 7A. for more information. 

The success of our business is significantly related to general economic conditions and, accordingly, our 
business could be harmed by any slowdown or deterioration in the economy.

Periods of economic weakness or recession; significantly rising interest rates; declining employment levels; 
declining demand for real estate; declining real estate values; conditions which negatively shape public perception 
of travel, including travel-related accidents, the financial condition of the airline, automotive and other 
transportation-related industries; or the public perception that any of these events or conditions may occur or be 
present, may negatively affect our business. These economic conditions can result in a general decline in 
acquisition, disposition and leasing activity, demand for hotel rooms and related lodging services, a general decline 
in the value of real estate and in rents, which in turn reduces revenue derived from property sales and leases and 
hotel operations as well as revenues associated with development activities. These conditions can also lead to a 
decline in property sales prices as well as a decline in funds invested in existing commercial real estate and related 
assets and properties planned for development. In addition, during periods of economic slowdown and recession, 
many consumers have historically reduced their discretionary spending, and our entertainment businesses depend 
on discretionary consumer and corporate spending. A reduction in consumer spending historically is accompanied 
by a decrease in attendance at live entertainment, sporting and leisure events, which may result in reductions in 
ticket sales, sponsorship opportunities and our ability to generate revenue with our entertainment businesses.
 
During an economic downturn, investment capital is usually constrained and it may take longer for us to dispose of 
real estate investments. As a result, the value of our real estate investments may be reduced and we could realize 
losses or diminished profitability. If economic and market conditions decline, our business performance and 
profitability could deteriorate. If this were to occur, we could fail to comply with certain financial covenants in our 
debt agreements, which would force us to seek waivers or amendments with our lenders. No assurance can be 
given that we would be able to obtain any necessary waivers or amendments on satisfactory terms, if at all.

Changes in weather conditions or natural disasters could adversely affect our business, financial condition 
and results of operations.

Our performance may be adversely affected by weather conditions in or near our areas of operations. For our real 
estate operations, adverse weather may delay development or damage property, resulting in substantial repair or 
replacement costs to the extent not covered by insurance, a reduction in property values, or a loss of revenue, each 
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our 
competitors may be affected differently by such changes in weather conditions or natural disasters depending on 
the location of their supplies or operations. Adverse weather conditions also may affect our live music events. Due 
to weather conditions, we may be required to reschedule an event to another available day, which would increase 
our costs for the event and could negatively affect the attendance at the event, as well as concession and 
merchandise sales, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our insurance coverage on our properties may be inadequate to cover any losses we may incur.

We maintain insurance on our properties, including property, liability, fire and extended coverage. However, there 
are certain types of losses, generally of a catastrophic nature, such as hurricanes and floods or acts of war or 
terrorism that may be uninsurable or not economical to insure. We use our discretion when determining amounts, 
coverage limits and deductibles for insurance. These terms are determined based on retaining an acceptable level 
of risk at a reasonable cost. This may result in insurance coverage that in the event of a substantial loss would not 
be sufficient to pay the full current market value or current replacement cost of our lost investment. Inflation, 
changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors also may make it 
unfeasible to use insurance proceeds to replace a building or other facility after it has been damaged or destroyed. 
Under such circumstances, the insurance proceeds we receive may be inadequate to restore our economic position 
in a property. In addition, we may become liable for injuries and accidents occurring during the construction process 
that are underinsured.
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The loss of certain key senior management personnel could negatively affect our business.

We depend on our two executive officers and other key personnel. Our Chairman, President and Chief Executive 
Officer has been employed by the company since its inception in 1992. He has served as President since August 
1996, Chief Executive Officer since May 1998 and Chairman of the Board since August 1998. Our Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer has been employed by the company since 2009. The loss of any of our key 
senior management personnel could negatively affect our business.

Our business may be adversely affected by information technology disruptions.

Cybersecurity incidents are increasing in frequency, evolving in nature and include, but are not limited to, 
installation of malicious software, unauthorized access to data and other electronic security breaches that could 
lead to disruptions in systems, unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information and the 
corruption of data. Although we have not experienced cybersecurity incidents in the past, there can be no 
assurance that we will not experience them in the future. Given the unpredictability of the timing, nature and scope 
of information technology disruptions, we could be subject to manipulation or improper use of our systems and 
networks or financial losses from remedial actions, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our cash 
flow, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Relating to Real Estate Operations

The real estate business is highly competitive and many of our competitors are larger and financially 
stronger than we are.

The real estate business is highly competitive. We compete with a large number of companies and individuals that 
have significantly greater financial, sales, marketing and other resources than we have. Our competitors include 
local developers who are committed primarily to particular markets and also national developers who acquire 
properties throughout the United States. A downturn in the real estate industry could significantly increase 
competition among developers. Increased competition could cause us to increase our selling incentives and/or 
reduce our prices. An oversupply of real estate properties available for sale or lease, as well as the potential 
significant discounting of prices by some of our competitors, may adversely affect our results of operations.

Our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition are greatly affected by the performance of the 
real estate industry.

Revenue from our real estate operations segment accounted for 14 percent of our total revenue for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2017. The U.S. real estate industry is highly cyclical and is affected by changes in global, 
national and local economic conditions and events such as general employment and income levels, availability of 
financing, interest rates, consumer confidence and overbuilding of or decrease in demand for residential and 
commercial real estate. Our real estate activities are subject to numerous factors beyond our control, including local 
real estate market conditions (both where our properties are located and in areas where our potential customers 
reside), substantial existing and potential competition, general national, regional and local economic conditions, 
fluctuations in interest rates and mortgage availability, changes in demographic conditions and changes in 
government regulations or requirements. Any of the foregoing factors could result in a reduction or cancellation of 
sales and/or lower gross margins for sales. Lower than expected sales could have a material adverse effect on the 
level of our profits and the timing and amounts of our cash flows.

Real estate investments often cannot easily be converted into cash and market values may be adversely affected 
by these economic circumstances, market fundamentals, and competitive and demographic conditions. Because of 
the effect these factors have on real estate values, it is difficult to predict the level of future sales or sales prices that 
will be realized for individual assets.

Our operations are subject to an intensive regulatory approval process and opposition from environmental 
groups, either or both of which could cause delays and increase the costs of our development efforts or 
preclude such developments entirely.

Before we can develop a property, we must obtain a variety of approvals from local and state governments with 
respect to such matters as zoning and other land use issues, and subdivision, site planning and environmental 
issues under applicable regulations. Some of these approvals are discretionary. Because government agencies and 
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special interest groups have in the past expressed concerns about our development plans in or near Austin, our 
ability to develop these properties and realize future income from our properties could be delayed, reduced, 
prevented or made more expensive.

Several special interest groups have in the past opposed our plans in the Austin area and have taken various 
actions to partially or completely restrict development in some areas, including areas where some of our most 
valuable properties are located. We have actively opposed these actions. However, because of the regulatory 
environment that has existed in the Austin area and the opposition of these special interest groups, there can be no 
assurance that an unfavorable ruling would not have a significant long-term adverse effect on the overall value of 
our property holdings.

Our operations are subject to environmental regulation, which can change at any time and could increase 
our costs.

Real estate development is subject to state and federal environmental regulations and to possible interruption or 
termination because of environmental considerations, including, without limitation, air and water quality and 
protection of endangered species and their habitats. 

Certain of the Barton Creek and Lantana properties include nesting territories for the Golden-cheeked Warbler, a 
federally listed endangered species. In 1995, we received a permit from the U.S. Wildlife Service pursuant to the 
Endangered Species Act, which to date has allowed the development of the Barton Creek and Lantana properties 
free of restrictions under the Endangered Species Act related to the maintenance of habitat for the Golden-cheeked 
Warbler.

Additionally, in April 1997, the U.S. Department of Interior listed the Barton Springs salamander as an endangered 
species after a federal court overturned a March 1997 decision by the Department of Interior not to list the Barton 
Springs Salamander based on a conservation agreement between the State of Texas and federal agencies. The 
listing of the Barton Springs Salamander has not affected, nor do we anticipate it will affect, our Barton Creek and 
Lantana properties for several reasons, including the results of technical studies and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service 10(a) permit obtained by us in 1995. The development permitted by the 2002 Circle C settlement with the 
city of Austin has been reviewed and approved by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and, as a result, we also do 
not anticipate that the 1997 listing of the Barton Springs Salamander will affect our Circle C properties.

In January 2013, the U.S. Department of the Interior announced that it had conducted an economic assessment of 
the potential designation of critical habitat for four species of Central Texas salamanders. Although this potential 
designation of habitat has not affected, nor do we anticipate that it will affect, our Barton Creek, Lantana or Circle C 
properties for several reasons, including prior studies and approvals, and our existing U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
10(a) permit obtained in 1995, future endangered species listings or habitat designations could impact development 
of our properties.

We are making, and will continue to make, expenditures with respect to our real estate development for the 
protection of the environment. Emphasis on environmental matters will result in additional costs in the future. New 
environmental regulations or changes in existing regulations or their enforcement may be enacted and such new 
regulations or changes may require significant expenditures by us. The recent trend toward stricter standards in 
environmental legislation and regulations is likely to continue and could have a material adverse effect on our 
operating costs.

Risks Relating to Leasing Operations

Unfavorable changes in market and economic conditions could negatively affect occupancy or rental rates, 
which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

A decline in the real estate market and economic conditions could significantly affect rental rates. Occupancy and 
rental rates in our market, in turn, could significantly affect our profitability and our ability to satisfy our financial 
obligations. The risks that could affect conditions in our market include the following:

• Local conditions, such as an oversupply of office space, a decline in the demand for office space or 
increased competition from other available office buildings;
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• The inability or unwillingness of tenants to pay their current rent or rent increases; and

• Declines in market rental rates.

Additionally, tenants at our retail properties face continual competition in attracting customers from various on-line 
and other competitors. Our competitors and those of our tenants could have a material adverse effect on our ability 
to lease space in our retail properties and on the rents we can charge or the concessions we can grant. Further, as 
new technologies emerge, the relationship among customers, retailers, and shopping centers are evolving on a 
rapid basis. If we are unable to adapt to such new technologies and relationships on a timely basis, our financial 
performance will be adversely impacted.

We cannot predict with certainty whether any of these conditions will occur or whether, and to what extent, they will 
have an adverse effect on our operations.

Risks Relating to Hotel Operations

We are subject to the business, financial and operating risks common to the hotel industry, any of which 
could reduce our revenues. 

Revenue from our hotel segment accounted for 47 percent of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2017. Business, financial and operating risks common to the hotel industry include: 

• Changes in desirability of geographic regions and geographic concentration of our operations and 
customers; 

• Decreases in the demand for hotel rooms and related lodging services, including a reduction in business 
travel as a result of alternatives to in-person meetings (including virtual meetings hosted online or over 
private teleconferencing networks) or due to general economic conditions; 

• Decreased corporate or governmental travel-related budgets and spending, as well as cancellations, 
deferrals or renegotiations of group business such as industry conventions; 

• Negative public perception of corporate travel-related activities; 

• The effect of internet intermediaries and other new industry entrants on pricing and our increasing reliance 
on technology; 

• The costs and administrative burdens associated with complying with applicable laws and regulations in the 
U.S., including health, safety and environmental laws, rules and regulations and other governmental and 
regulatory actions; 

• Changes in operating costs including, but not limited to, energy, water, labor costs (including the effect of 
labor shortages and unionization), food costs, workers’ compensation and health-care related costs, 
insurance and unanticipated costs related to acts of nature and their consequences; and 

• Cyclical over-building in the hotel industry. 

External perception of the W Austin Hotel could negatively affect our results of operations. 

Starwood manages hotel operations at the W Austin Hotel. Our ability to attract and retain guests depends, in part, 
upon the external perceptions of Starwood and the quality of the W Austin Hotel and its services and we have to 
spend money periodically to keep the property well maintained, modernized and refurbished. The reputation of the 
W Austin Hotel may be negatively affected if Starwood fails to act responsibly or comply with regulatory 
requirements in a number of areas, such as safety and security, sustainability, responsible tourism, environmental 
management, human rights and support for the local communities where Starwood manages and/or owns 
properties. The considerable increase in the use of social media over recent years has greatly expanded the 
potential scope and scale, and increased the rapidity of the dissemination of negative publicity that could be 
generated by any adverse incident or failure on the part of hotel operators. An adverse incident involving associates 
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or guests and any media coverage resulting therefrom may cause a loss of consumer confidence in the Starwood 
brand which could negatively affect our results of operations. 

Our revenues, profits or market share could be harmed if we are unable to compete effectively in the hotel 
industry in Austin. 

The hotel industry in Austin is highly competitive. The W Austin Hotel competes for customers with other hotel and 
resort properties in Austin, ranging from national and international hotel brands to independent, local and regional 
hotel operators. We compete based on a number of factors, including quality and consistency of rooms, restaurant 
and meeting facilities and services, attractiveness of location and price. Some of our competitors may have 
substantially greater marketing and financial resources than we do, and if we are unable to successfully compete in 
these areas, our operating results could be adversely affected. 

Historically, the Austin market has had a limited number of high-end hotel accommodations. However, hotel 
capacity is being expanded by other hotel operators in Austin, including several properties in close proximity to the 
W Austin Hotel in downtown Austin. This increase in competition as well as the anticipated opening of additional 
hotel rooms in downtown Austin during 2018, is expected to further impact future hotel revenues. As new rooms 
come on-line, increased competition could lead to an excess supply of hotel rooms in the Austin market, thereby 
causing Starwood to increase promotional incentives for hotel guests and/or reduce rates. Increased competition in 
the Austin market from new hotels or hotels that have recently undergone substantial renovation could have an 
adverse effect on occupancy, average daily rate and revenue per available room. 

Additionally, some of our hotel rooms are booked through third-party internet travel intermediaries as well as lesser-
known online travel service providers. In addition, travelers can book stays on websites that facilitate the short-term 
rental of homes and apartments from owners, thereby providing an alternative to hotel rooms. Increased internet 
bookings could have an adverse effect on occupancy, average daily rate and revenue per available room.

Risks Relating to Entertainment Businesses

We face intense competition in the live music industry, and we may not be able to maintain or increase our 
current revenue, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Revenue from our entertainment businesses accounted for 29 percent of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2017. Our entertainment businesses compete in a highly competitive industry, and we may not be 
able to maintain or increase our current revenue as a result of such competition. The live music industry competes 
with other forms of entertainment for consumers’ discretionary spending and within this industry we compete with 
other venues to book artists. Our competitors compete with us for key employees who have relationships with 
popular music artists and that have a history of being able to book such artists for concerts and tours. These 
competitors may engage in more extensive development efforts, undertake more far-reaching marketing 
campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to existing and potential artists. 
Our competitors may develop services, advertising options or music venues that are equal or superior to those we 
provide or that achieve greater market acceptance and brand recognition than we achieve. It is possible that new 
competitors may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share.

Other variables related to our entertainment businesses that could adversely affect our financial performance by, 
among other things, leading to decreases in overall revenue, the number of sponsors, event attendance, ticket 
prices and fees or profit margins include:

• An increased level of competition for advertising dollars, which may lead to lower sponsorships as we 
attempt to retain advertisers or which may cause us to lose advertisers to our competitors offering better 
programs that we are unable or unwilling to match;

• Unfavorable fluctuations in operating costs, which we may be unwilling or unable to pass through to our 
customers via ticket prices;

• Competitors’ offerings that may include more favorable terms than we do in order to obtain events for the 
venues they operate;
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• Technological changes and innovations that we are unable to adopt or are late in adopting that offer more 
attractive entertainment alternatives than we or other live entertainment providers currently offer, which may 
lead to a reduction in attendance at live events, a loss of ticket sales or lower ticket fees;

• Other entertainment options available to our audiences that we do not offer;

• General economic conditions which could cause our consumers to reduce discretionary spending;

• Unfavorable changes in labor conditions which may require us to spend more to retain and attract key 
employees;

• Interruptions in our ticketing systems and infrastructures and data loss or other breaches of our network 
security; and 

• Changes in consumer preferences.

Additionally, our entertainment operations are seasonal. The results of operations from our entertainment segment 
vary from quarter to quarter and year to year, and the financial performance in certain quarters or years may not be 
indicative of, or comparable to, our financial performance in subsequent quarters or years.

Personal injuries and accidents may occur in connection with our live music events, which could subject 
us to personal injury or other claims and increase our expenses, as well as reduce attendance at our live 
music events, causing a decrease in our revenue.

There are inherent risks involved with producing live music events. As a result, personal injuries and accidents 
have, and may, occur from time to time, which could subject us to claims and liabilities for personal injuries. 
Incidents in connection with our live music events at ACL Live or festival sites that we rent through our joint 
ventures could also result in claims or reduce attendance at our events, which could cause a decrease in our 
revenue or reduce our operating income. We maintain insurance policies that provide coverage for personal injuries 
sustained by persons at our venues or events or accidents in the ordinary course of business, and there can be no 
assurance that such insurance will be adequate at all times and in all circumstances.

Risks Relating to Ownership of Shares of Our Common Stock

Our common stock is thinly traded; therefore, our stock price may fluctuate more than the stock market as 
a whole.

As a result of the thin trading market for shares of our common stock, our stock price may fluctuate significantly 
more than the stock market as a whole or the stock prices of similar companies. Without a larger public float, shares 
of our common stock will be less liquid than the shares of common stock of companies with broader public 
ownership, and as a result, the trading prices for shares of our common stock may be more volatile. Among other 
things, trading of a relatively small volume of shares of our common stock may have a greater effect on the trading 
price than would be the case if our public float were larger.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time involved in legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. We do not 
believe, based on currently available information, that the outcome of any legal proceeding will have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. We maintain liability insurance to cover some, but 
not all, potential liabilities normally incident to the ordinary course of our business as well as other insurance 
coverage customary in our business, with such coverage limits as management deems prudent.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
Certain information as of February 28, 2018, regarding our executive officers is set forth in the following table and 
accompanying text. Each of our executive officers serves at the discretion of our Board of Directors.

Name Age Position or Office
William H. Armstrong III 53 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
Erin D. Pickens 56 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Armstrong has been employed by us since our inception in 1992. Mr. Armstrong has served as President since 
August 1996, Chief Executive Officer since May 1998 and Chairman of the Board since August 1998.

Ms. Pickens has served as our Senior Vice President since May 2009 and as our Chief Financial Officer since June 
2009. Ms. Pickens previously served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Tarragon 
Corporation from November 1998 until April 2009, and as Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer from 
September 1996 until November 1998 and Accounting Manager from June 1995 until August 1996 for Tarragon and 
its predecessors. 
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the change in the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock from 
December 31, 2012, through December 31, 2017, with the cumulative total return of (a) the Standard & Poor's 
(S&P) 500 Stock Index, (b) the Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index and (c) the below custom peer group of real 
estate related companies: 

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. (ALEX)
Consolidated-Tomoka Land Co. (CTO)
Forestar Group Inc. (FOR)
The Howard Hughes Corporation (HHC)
Maui Land & Pineapple Company, Inc. (MLP)
The St. Joe Company (JOE)
Tejon Ranch Co. (TRC)

This comparison assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2012, in (a) our common stock, (b) the S&P 500 Stock 
Index, (c) the Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index and (d) the custom peer group.

The total returns shown assume that dividends are reinvested. The stock price performance shown below is not 
necessarily indicative of future price performance.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
Stratus Properties Inc., S&P 500 Stock Index, 

Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index and Custom Peer Group

December 31,
 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Stratus Properties Inc. $ 100 $ 201 $ 162 $ 240 $ 385 $ 362
S&P 500 Stock Index 100 132 151 153 171 201
Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index 100 102 129 132 142 156
Custom Peer Group 100 131 131 115 126 139
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Common Stock

Our common stock trades on The Nasdaq Stock Market (NASDAQ) under the symbol "STRS". The following table 
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock, as reported by 
NASDAQ.

 2017 2016
 High Low High Low

First Quarter $ 33.96 $ 24.35 $ 25.05 $ 18.45
Second Quarter 30.30 25.20 24.24 15.75
Third Quarter 30.95 27.25 25.50 17.11
Fourth Quarter 32.15 27.25 36.06 23.17

As of February 28, 2018, there were 337 holders of record of our common stock. 

Common Stock Dividends

The declaration of dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors (the Board); however, our ability to pay 
dividends is restricted by the terms of our Comerica credit facility which prohibits us from paying a dividend on or 
repurchasing shares of our common stock without the bank’s prior written consent. In March 2017, we announced 
that our Board, after receiving written consent from Comerica Bank, declared a special cash dividend of $1.00 per 
share that was paid on April 18, 2017, to stockholders of record on March 31, 2017. The dividend was declared 
after the Board’s consideration of the results of our sale of The Oaks at Lakeway. Comerica’s consent to the 
payment of this special dividend is not indicative of the bank’s willingness to consent to the payment of future 
dividends. The declaration of future dividends, which is subject to our Board's discretion and the restrictions under 
our Comerica credit facility, will depend on our financial results, cash requirements, projected compliance with 
covenants in our debt agreements, outlook and other factors deemed relevant by our Board. 

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information with respect to shares of our common stock that we repurchased under 
the board-approved open market share purchase program during the three-month period ended December 31, 
2017.

Period

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased

Average
Price Paid
Per Share

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 

Publicly Announced Plans 
or Programsa

Maximum Number of 
Shares That May Yet 
Be Purchased Under 

the Plans or Programsa

October 1 to 31, 2017 — $ — — 991,695
November 1 to 30, 2017 — — — 991,695
December 1 to 31, 2017 — — — 991,695

Total — $ — — 991,695

a. In November 2013, the Board approved an increase in our open-market share purchase program, initially authorized in 
2001, for up to 1.7 million shares of our common stock. The program does not have an expiration date. 

As stated above, our Comerica credit facility requires lender approval of any common stock repurchases.
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data shown below is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. These 
historical results are not necessarily indicative of results that you can expect for any future period. You should read this data in 
conjunction with Items 7. and 7A. "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and 
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" and Item 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended December 31:
Revenues $ 80,340 $ 80,341 $ 80,871 $ 94,111 $127,710
Operating income 23,237

a
1,177 25,732

b,c
10,364

d,e
14,151

c,e

Equity in unconsolidated affiliates' (loss)
income (49) 51 (1,299) 1,112 (76)

Income (loss) from continuing operations, net
of taxes 3,884 (5,999) 14,377 18,157 5,894

Income from discontinued operations, net of
taxes — — 3,218 f — —

Net income (loss) 3,884
a,g,h

(5,999)
g

17,595
b,c,f

18,157
d,e,i

5,894
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders 3,879 a,g,h (5,999) g 12,177 b,c,f 13,403 d,e,i 2,585 c,e

Basic net income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.11 $ 1.67 $ 0.32
Discontinued operations — — 0.40 — —

Basic net income (loss) per share $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.51 $ 1.67 $ 0.32

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations $ 0.47

a,g,h
$ (0.74)

g
$ 1.11

b,c
$ 1.66

d,e,i
$ 0.32

c,e

Discontinued operations — — 0.40
f

— —
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.47

a,g,h
$ (0.74)

g
$ 1.51

b,c
$ 1.66

d,e,i
$ 0.32

c,e

Average shares outstanding:
Basic 8,122 8,089 8,058 8,037 8,077
Diluted 8,171 8,089 8,091 8,078 8,111

Dividends declared per share of common stock $ 1.00 $ — $ — $ — $ —

At December 31:
Real estate held for sale $ 22,612 $ 21,236 $ 25,944 $ 12,245 $ 18,133
Real estate held for investment, net 188,390 239,719 186,626 178,065 182,530
Real estate under development 118,484 111,373 139,171 123,921 76,891
Land available for development 14,804 19,153 23,397 21,368 21,404
Total assets 405,993 452,175 430,105 400,117 344,498
Debt 221,470 291,102 260,592 193,907 148,887
Stockholders' equity 127,310 130,951 136,599 136,443 123,621
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 80 75 75 38,643 45,695

a. Includes a gain of $25.5 million ($16.4 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $2.01 per share), 
primarily associated with recognition of $24.3 million of the gain on the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, and the sales of a 
bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek, partly offset by a charge of $2.5 million 
($1.6 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.20 per share) for profit participation associated with 
the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway.

b. Includes a gain of $20.7 million ($10.8 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $1.34 per share) 
associated with the sales of Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter.

c. Includes a gain of $0.6 million ($0.4 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.05 per share) in 2015 
associated with the sale of a tract of undeveloped land and $2.1 million ($2.1 million to net income attributable to common 
stockholders or $0.26 per share) in 2013 associated with undeveloped land sales.

d. Includes a gain of $1.5 million ($1.0 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.12 per share) 
associated with a litigation settlement. 

e. Includes income of $0.6 million ($0.4 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.05 per share) in 2014 
and $1.8 million ($1.8 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.22 per share) in 2013 related to 
insurance settlements, and $0.4 million ($0.3 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.03 per share) 
in 2014 and $1.1 million ($1.1 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $0.13 per share) in 2013, for the 
recovery of building repair costs.
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f. Includes recognition of a previously deferred gain of $5.0 million ($3.2 million to net income attributable to common 
stockholders or $0.40 per share) associated with 7500 Rialto Boulevard, which was sold in February 2012.

g. Includes losses on early extinguishment of debt totaling $0.5 million ($0.3 million to net income attributable to stockholders 
or $0.04 per share) in 2017 associated with the prepayment of the Lakeway construction loan, and $0.8 million ($0.5 million 
to net loss attributable to common stockholders or $0.06 per share) in 2016 associated with prepayment of the Bank of 
America loan (see Note 6).

h. Includes a charge of $7.6 million ($0.93 per share) associated with U.S. tax reform (see Note 7).
i. Includes a credit to provision for income taxes of $12.1 million, $1.50 per share, for the reversal of valuation allowances on 

deferred tax assets.

Items 7. and 7A.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
and Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

OVERVIEW

In Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, “we,” “us,” “our” and 
"Stratus" refer to Stratus Properties Inc. and all entities owned or controlled by Stratus Properties Inc. You should 
read the following discussion in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related discussion of 
“Business and Properties” and “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The results of operations 
reported and summarized below are not necessarily indicative of future operating results, and future results could 
differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements (refer to "Cautionary Statement" for further 
discussion). All subsequent references to “Notes” refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located in 
Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” 

We are a diversified real estate company engaged primarily in the acquisition, entitlement, development, 
management, operation and sale of commercial, hotel, entertainment, and multi-family and single-family residential 
real estate properties, primarily located in the Austin, Texas area, and also including projects in certain other select 
markets in Texas. We generate revenues and cash flows from the sale of developed properties, rental income from 
our leased properties and from our hotel and entertainment operations. See Note 10 for further discussion of our 
operating segments and "Business Strategy and Related Risks" for a discussion of our business strategy.

General.  Developed property sales can include an individual tract of land that has been developed and permitted 
for residential use, a developed lot with a home already built on it or condominium units at the W Austin 
Residences. We may sell properties under development, undeveloped properties or leased properties, if 
opportunities arise that we believe will maximize overall asset values as part of our business strategy. 

Our acreage under development and undeveloped as of December 31, 2017, is presented in the following table. 

 Under Development Undeveloped  

Single
Family

Multi-
family Commercial Total

Single
Family

Multi-
family Commercial Total

Total
Acreage

Austin:        
Barton Creek 4 38 —  42 512 262 394 1,168 1,210
Circle C — — —  — — 36 216 252 252
Lantana — — 11  11 — — 44 44 55
Other — — — — 7 — — 7 7

Lakewaya — — — — 35 — — 35 35
Magnolia — — — — — — 124 124 124
Jones Crossing — — 72 72 — — — — 72
Camino Real, San Antonio — — —  — — — 2 2 2
Total 4 38 83  125 554 298 780 1,632 1,757

a. On February 15, 2017, we sold The Oaks at Lakeway, which included 52 acres of land under development at December 31, 
2016, but we retained 34.7 acres of undeveloped land adjacent to the project.

Our single-family residential holdings at December 31, 2017, are principally in southwest Austin, Texas, and include 
developed lots and townhomes and townhomes under development in Barton Creek and condominium units at the 
W Austin Residences. See "Development Activities - Residential" for further discussion. Our multi-family and 
commercial holdings at December 31, 2017, consist of the first phase of Barton Creek Village, the Santal multi-
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family project, the office and retail space at the W Austin Hotel & Residences, Lantana Place, Phases I and II of 
Jones Crossing and West Killeen Market. See "Development Activities - Commercial" and "Development Activities - 
Residential" for further discussion.

The W Austin Hotel & Residences is located on a two-acre city block in downtown Austin and contains a 251-room 
luxury hotel, 159 residential condominium units and office, retail and entertainment space. The hotel is managed by 
Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc., a subsidiary of Marriott International, Inc. (Starwood). The 
entertainment space, occupied by Austin City Limits Live at the Moody Theater (ACL Live) and 3TEN ACL Live, 
includes a live music and entertainment venue and production studio. The 3TEN ACL Live venue which opened in 
March 2016, has a capacity of approximately 350 people and is designed to be more intimate than ACL Live, which 
can accommodate approximately 3,000 people.

In 2017, our revenues totaled $80.3 million and our net income attributable to common stockholders totaled $3.9 
million, compared with revenues of $80.3 million and net loss attributable to common stockholders of $6.0 million for 
2016 and revenues of $80.9 million and net income attributable to common stockholders of $12.2 million for 2015. 

Our results for 2017 include pre-tax gains on the sale of assets totaling $25.5 million ($16.4 million to net income 
attributable to common stockholders), primarily associated with recognition of a majority of the gain on the sale of 
The Oaks at Lakeway, and a bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek (see 
Note 11). Our results for 2017 also included a tax charge of $7.6 million associated with the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 
enacted on December 22, 2017 (U.S. tax reform), and a charge of $2.5 million ($1.6 million to net income 
attributable to common stockholders) for profit participation costs and a loss of $0.5 million ($0.3 million to net 
income attributable to common stockholders) on early extinguishment of debt, both related to our sale of The Oaks 
at Lakeway. 

Our results for 2016 included higher net interest expense and an increase in general and administrative expenses 
totaling $3.1 million, primarily associated with our successful proxy contest and review of strategic alternatives. 
Higher interest expense reflects increased borrowings and higher interest rates associated with our refinancing of 
the W Austin Hotel & Residences with longer-term, fixed-rate debt. The W Austin Hotel & Residences refinancing 
resulted in a loss on early extinguishment of debt totaling $0.8 million in 2016. 

Our results for 2015 included a pre-tax gain of $20.7 million on the sales of our Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter 
commercial developments and the recognition of a previously deferred gain associated with the 2012 sale of 7500 
Rialto totaling $5.0 million (see Note 11 for further discussion). The results for 2015 also included a gain of $0.6 
million associated with an undeveloped land sale. 

At December 31, 2017, we had total debt of $221.5 million (see "Debt Maturities and Other Contractual Obligations" 
for further discussion) and consolidated cash of $14.6 million. For discussion of operating cash flows and debt 
transactions see "Capital Resources and Liquidity" below.

Real Estate Market Conditions.
Because of the concentration of our assets primarily in the Austin, Texas area, and in other select, fast-growing 
Texas markets, market conditions in these regions significantly affect our business. Our future operating cash flows 
and our ability to develop and sell our properties will be dependent on the level and profitability of our real estate 
sales. In turn, these sales will be significantly affected by future real estate market conditions in and around Austin 
and the other markets in which we operate, including development costs, interest rate levels, the availability of 
credit to finance real estate transactions, demand for residential and commercial real estate, and regulatory factors 
including our use and development entitlements. These market conditions historically move in periodic cycles, and 
can be volatile.

In addition to the traditional influence of state and federal government employment levels on the local economy, the 
Austin-Round Rock, Texas area (Austin-Round Rock) has been influenced by growth in the technology sector. The 
Austin-Round Rock-area population increased by 25 percent from 2009 through 2016, largely because of growing 
interest in Austin's local job market. Median family income levels in the Austin-Round Rock area increased by 16 
percent during the period from 2009 through 2016. The expanding economy resulted in rising demands for 
residential housing, commercial office space and retail services. From 2009 through 2016, sales tax receipts in the 
city of Austin (the City) rose by 52 percent, an indication of the increase in business activity during the period. 
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The following chart compares Austin-Round Rock's five-county median family income and metro area population for 
1999, 2009 and the most current information available for 2016 and 2017, based on United States (U.S.) Census 
Bureau data and Austin-Round Rock's data. 

Based on the City's fiscal year of October 1 through September 30, the chart below compares the City’s sales tax 
revenues for 1999, 2009 and 2016 (the latest period for which data is available). 

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Austin, Texas
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Real estate development in southwest Austin, where most of our real estate under development and undeveloped 
real estate is located, has historically been constrained as a result of various restrictions imposed by the City. 
Additionally, several special interest groups have traditionally opposed development in southwest Austin. Vacancy 
rates as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, are noted below. 

 Vacancy Rates
Building Type 2017 2016

Office Buildings (Class A) 9% a 9% a

Multi-Family Buildings 6% b 4% b

Retail Buildings 3.5%
b

4%
b

a. CB Richard Ellis: Austin MarketView
b. Marcus & Millichap Research Services, CoStar Group, Inc.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Stratus Properties Inc. was formed in 1992 to hold, operate and develop the domestic real estate and oil and gas 
properties of our former parent company. We sold all of our oil and gas properties during the 1990s and have since 
focused solely on our real estate properties. Our overall strategy has been to manage our diverse asset base of 
residential, commercial, hotel and entertainment real estate located in the premier Austin, Texas market and in other 
select, fast-growing Texas markets. We enhance the value of our residential and commercial properties by securing 
and maintaining development entitlements and developing and building real estate projects on these properties for 
sale or investment. Our hotel and entertainment venues, including ACL Live, are located in downtown Austin and 
are central to the city's world renowned, vibrant music scene.

We are continuing our successful program of actively developing our properties and strategically marketing and 
selling developed assets at appropriate times to maximize stockholder value. Our active development plan includes 
completion of both residential and commercial development projects. Our development portfolio consists of 
approximately 1,800 acres of commercial, multi-family and single-family projects under development or 
undeveloped and held for future use. We believe that our portfolio, along with management's extensive experience 
in Austin-area real estate development, support our ability to obtain project financing and/or seek joint venture 
partners including for the development projects described in "Development Activities - Residential" and 
"Development Activities - Commercial".

As discussed below in “Development Activities - Commercial”, in February 2017, we sold (i) The Oaks at Lakeway 
for $114.0 million in cash and (ii) our 3,085-square-foot bank building in Barton Creek Village and an adjacent 
undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land for $3.1 million in cash. In 2015, we completed the sales of our Austin-area 
Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial properties, both located in the Circle C community, for $32.5 
million and $12.5 million, respectively. 

In addition, during 2017 we made significant progress in advancing our development projects. We (i) completed 
construction of West Killeen Market, a retail development project in Killeen Texas, anchored by a 90,000-square-
foot HEB grocery store and consisting of approximately 44,000 square feet of total tenant leasing space, on 
schedule and under budget, (ii) secured project financing and commenced construction of phase one of Lantana 
Place, a mixed-use development in southwest Austin consisting of approximately 320,000 square feet of retail, hotel 
and office space, (iii) secured project financing and commenced construction of the retail component of Jones 
Crossing, an HEB-anchored, mixed use development in College Station, Texas, which is expected to total 
approximately 258,000 square feet of commercial space, including the 106,000-square-foot HEB grocery store 
which is currently expected to open in August 2018, (iv) secured project financing and commenced construction of 
Santal Phase II, a 212-unit garden style, multi-family project located directly adjacent to Santal Phase I in the 
upscale, highly populated Barton Creek community, (v) advanced development plans for Magnolia, an HEB-
anchored retail development project in Magnolia, Texas, which includes 351,000 square feet of total tenant leasing 
space and 1,200 multi-family units; and (vii) secured final building permits for The St. Mary, a 240-unit multi-family 
development in the Circle C community, and subject to obtaining project financing, we intend to commence 
construction in the second quarter of 2018.  

We believe that Austin and surrounding sub-markets continue to be desirable locations. Many of our developments 
are in locations where development approvals have historically been subject to regulatory constraints, which has 
made it difficult to obtain entitlements. Our Austin assets, which are located in desirable areas with significant 
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regulatory constraints, are highly entitled and now have utility capacity for full buildout. As a result, we believe that 
through strategic planning, development and marketing, we can maximize and fully realize their value. Our 
development plans require significant additional capital, and may be pursued through joint ventures or other means. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our 
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the U.S. The preparation of these financial statements requires that we make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We base these 
estimates on historical experience and on assumptions that we consider reasonable under the circumstances; 
however, reported results could differ from those based on the current estimates under different assumptions and/or 
conditions. The areas requiring the use of management’s estimates are discussed in Note 1 under the heading 
“Use of Estimates.” We believe that our most critical accounting policies relate to our real estate and leasing assets, 
deferred tax assets, income taxes and profit recognition.

Management has reviewed the following discussion of its development and selection of critical accounting 
estimates with the audit committee of our board of directors.

Real Estate, Hotel, Entertainment Venue and Leasing Assets.  Real estate held for sale is stated at the lower of 
cost or fair value less costs to sell. The cost of real estate sold includes acquisition, development, construction and 
carrying costs and other related costs through the development stage. Real estate under development and land 
available for development are stated at cost. Real estate held for investment, which includes the hotel and 
entertainment venues at the W Austin Hotel & Residences and our leasing assets, is also stated at cost. When 
events or circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable, an impairment test is 
performed. For real estate held for sale, if estimated fair value less costs to sell is less than the related carrying 
amount, a reduction of the asset’s carrying value to fair value less costs to sell is required. For real estate under 
development, land available for development and real estate held for investment, if the projected undiscounted cash 
flow from the asset is less than the related carrying amount, a reduction of the carrying amount of the asset to fair 
value is required. Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset. Generally, we 
determine fair value using valuation techniques such as discounted expected future cash flows. 

In developing estimated future cash flows for impairment testing for our real estate assets, we have incorporated 
our own market assumptions including those regarding real estate prices, sales pace, sales and marketing costs, 
and infrastructure costs. Our assumptions are based, in part, on general economic conditions, the current state of 
the real estate industry, expectations about the short- and long-term outlook for the real estate market, and 
competition from other developers in the area in which we develop our properties. These assumptions can 
significantly affect our estimates of future cash flows. For those properties held for sale and deemed to be impaired, 
we determine fair value based on appraised values, adjusted for estimated costs to sell, as we believe this is the 
value for which the property could be sold. We recorded no impairment losses during the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2017 (see Note 1).

Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are required to be reduced by a valuation 
allowance if, based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. 
Accordingly, we assess the need to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets periodically based on the 
more-likely-than-not realization threshold criterion. In the assessment for a valuation allowance, appropriate 
consideration is given to all positive and negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax assets. This 
assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, 
forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our experience with operating loss and 
tax credit carryforwards not expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives. This process involves significant 
management judgment about assumptions that are subject to change based on variances between projected and 
actual operating performance and changes in our business environment or operating or financing plans.

We regularly evaluate the recoverability of our deferred tax assets, considering available positive and negative 
evidence, including earnings history and the forecast of future taxable income. We had deferred tax assets (net of 
deferred tax liabilities) totaling $11.5 million at December 31, 2017.

Income Taxes.  In preparing our annual consolidated financial statements, we estimate the actual amount of 
income taxes currently payable or receivable as well as deferred income tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
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temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which these temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates or laws is recognized in income in 
the period in which such changes are enacted. Our income tax provision for 2017 includes a net tax charge of $7.6 
million associated with U.S. tax reform. As the provisions related to U.S. tax reform are numerous and complex, we 
continue to evaluate their impact. See Note 7 for further discussion.

Profit Recognition on Sales of Real Estate.  Sales of real estate do not qualify for the full accrual method of profit 
recognition until all of the following criteria are met: (i) a sale is consummated, (ii) the buyer's initial and continuing 
investments are adequate to demonstrate a commitment to pay for the property, (iii) the seller's receivable is not 
subject to future subordination, and (iv) the seller has transferred to the buyer the usual risks and rewards of 
ownership in a transaction that is in substance a sale and does not have a substantial continuing involvement with 
the party.

In February 2017, upon the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, the gain on sale of $39.7 million was deferred as a result 
of Stratus’ continuing involvement under the master lease agreements with the purchaser (see Note 11). Stratus 
estimates its maximum probable exposure to loss using a probability-weighted assessment of future lease 
payments based on the master lease agreements. The rent payments related to the 99-year hotel pad master lease 
represent the greatest exposure to loss. In May 2017, the hotel tenant began paying rent and, in August 2017, 
obtained construction financing and commenced construction of its building. The achievement of these milestones 
significantly reduced Stratus' probability weighted estimated maximum exposure to loss and $24.3 million of the 
gain was recognized during third-quarter 2017 based on the performance of services method.

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

Residential.  As of December 31, 2017, the number of our residential developed lots/units, lots/units under 
development and lot/units for potential development by area are shown below:

 Residential Lots/Units

 Developed
Under

Development
Potential 

Developmenta Total
Barton Creek:    

Amarra Drive:   
Phase II 12 — — 12
Phase III 38 4 — 42
Amarra Villas 4 15 — 19

 Other townhomes — — 170 170
Section N multi-family:

Santal Phase I 236 — — 236
Santal Phase II — 212 — 212
Other Section N — — 1,412 1,412

Other Barton Creek sections — — 156 156
Circle C multi-family:   

The St. Mary — — 240 240
Tract 102 — — 56 56

Lakeway — — 100 100
Other — — 7 7
W Austin Residences 2 — — 2
Total Residential Lots/Units 292 231 2,141 2,664

a. Our development of the properties identified under the heading “Potential Development” is dependent upon the approval of 
our development plans and permits by governmental agencies, including the City. Those governmental agencies may not 
approve one or more development plans and permit applications related to such properties or may require us to modify our 
development plans. Accordingly, our development strategy with respect to those properties may change in the future. While 
we may be proceeding with approved infrastructure projects or planning activities for some of these properties, they are not 
considered to be “under development” for disclosure in this table until construction activities have begun.
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Barton Creek
Amarra Drive. In 2008, we substantially completed the development of Amarra Drive Phase II, which consists of 35 
lots on 51 acres. We sold one lot for $0.6 million in 2017, one lot for $0.6 million in 2016 and none in 2015. As of 
December 31, 2017, 12 Phase II lots remained unsold. During January 2018, one Phase II lot was sold.
 
In 2015, we substantially completed the development of Amarra Drive Phase III, which consists of 64 lots on 166 
acres. In 2017, we identified four lots on which to build homes and began construction on two homes. We sold 6 
Phase III lots for $4.1 million in 2017, 6 Phase III lots for $4.4 million in 2016 and 10 Phase III lots for $7.0 million in 
2015. As of December 31, 2017, 38 Phase III lots remain unsold.

In March 2018, we entered into a contract to sell one Amarra Drive Phase II lot and eight Amarra Drive Phase III 
lots for a total of $5.9 million. In accordance with the contract, the parties are required to close on the sale of these 
lots ratably before December 31, 2018. If the purchaser fails to close on the sale of the minimum number of lots by 
any of the specified closing dates, we may elect to terminate the contract but would retain the related $45 thousand 
earnest money. In addition, as of February 28, 2018, six Phase III lots were under contract, one of which closed in 
March.

The Villas at Amarra Drive (Amarra Villas) townhome project is a 20-unit development for which we completed site 
work in late 2015. During 2017, construction of the first five townhomes was completed and construction of the next 
two townhomes began. One of the completed townhomes was sold during 2017. As of February 28, 2018, two 
townhomes, currently under construction, were under contract.

Section N
Santal.  The Santal Phase I multi-family project, a garden-style apartment complex, was completed within budget in 
August 2016 and consists of 236 units. We began recognizing rental revenue, which is included in the Leasing 
Operations segment, in January 2016. As of February 28, 2018, approximately 95 percent of the units were leased. 
In September 2017, we entered into an amended loan agreement that increased the original commitment of $34.1 
million to $59.2 million, which includes a $32.8 million loan for Santal Phase I and an additional $26.4 million for 
construction of Santal Phase II, a 212-unit garden-style apartment complex located adjacent to Santal Phase I. We 
began construction of Santal Phase II in September 2017 and expect the first building to be complete in third-
quarter 2018.

Circle C
We are developing the Circle C community based on the entitlements secured in our Circle C settlement with the 
City. Our Circle C settlement, as amended in 2004, permits development of 1.16 million square feet of commercial 
space, 504 multi-family units and 830 single-family residential lots. See "Properties" under Part 1, Items 1. and 2. 
for further discussion of our Circle C settlement with the City. 

Meridian. Meridian is an 800-lot residential development at the Circle C community. Development of the final phase 
of Meridian, which consisted of 57 one-acre lots, was completed in 2014. We sold the last 12 lots for $3.4 million in 
2017, 19 lots for $5.3 million in 2016 and 19 lots for $5.4 million in 2015. 

The St. Mary. We have secured final building permits for The St. Mary, a 240-unit multi-family development in the 
Circle C community, and, subject to obtaining construction financing, intend to commence construction by 
mid-2018.

W Austin Residences
As of December 31, 2017, two remaining condominium units are available for sale and are being marketed.
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Commercial.  As of December 31, 2017, the number of square feet of our commercial property developed, under 
development and our remaining entitlements for potential development (excluding property associated with our 
unconsolidated joint venture with Trammell Crow Central Texas Development, Inc. relating to Crestview Station in 
Austin (the Crestview Station Joint Venture), and the W Austin Hotel and ACL Live entertainment venue) are shown 
below: 

 Commercial Property

 Developed
Under

Development
Potential 

Development a Total
Barton Creek:     

Barton Creek Village 22,366 — — 22,366
Entry corner — — 5,000 5,000
Amarra retail/office — — 83,081 83,081
Section N — — 1,500,000 1,500,000

Circle C — — 674,942 674,942
Lantana:

Lantana Place — 99,663 220,337 320,000
Tract G07 — — 160,000 160,000

W Austin Hotel & Residences:
Office 38,316 — — 38,316
Retail 18,327 — — 18,327

Magnolia — — 351,000 351,000
West Killeen Market 44,000 — — 44,000
Jones Crossing — 153,250 104,750 258,000
Total Square Feet 123,009 252,913 3,099,110 3,475,032

a. Our development of the properties identified under the heading “Potential Development” is dependent upon the approval of 
our development plans and permits by governmental agencies, including the City. Those governmental agencies may not 
approve one or more development plans and permit applications related to such properties or may require us to modify our 
development plans. Accordingly, our development strategy with respect to those properties may change in the future. While 
we may be proceeding with approved infrastructure projects or planning activities for some of these properties, they are not 
considered to be “under development” for disclosure in this table until construction activities have begun. 

The Oaks at Lakeway
On February 15, 2017, we sold The Oaks at Lakeway to FHF I Oaks at Lakeway, LLC for $114.0 million in cash. Net 
cash proceeds totaled $50.8 million after repayment of the Lakeway construction loan (see Note 11). We used a 
portion of these net cash proceeds to pay indebtedness outstanding under the Comerica Bank credit facility. The 
parties entered into three master lease agreements at closing: (1) one covering unleased in-line retail space, with a 
5-year term, (2) one covering four unleased pad sites, three of which have 10-year terms, and one of which has a 
15-year term, and (3) one covering the hotel pad with a 99-year term. As specified conditions are met, primarily 
consisting of the tenant executing a lease, commencing payment of rent and taking occupancy, leases will be 
assigned to the purchaser and the corresponding leased space will be removed from the master lease, reducing our 
master lease payment obligations. Our master lease payment obligation, which currently approximates $180 
thousand per month, is expected to decline over time until leasing is complete and all leases are assigned to the 
purchaser.  

We agreed to guarantee the obligations of our selling subsidiary under the sales agreement, up to a liability cap of 
two percent of the purchase price. This cap does not apply to our obligation to satisfy the selling subsidiary's 
indemnity obligations for its broker commissions or similar compensation or our liability in guaranteeing the selling 
subsidiary's obligations under the master leases. To secure the subsidiary's obligations under the master leases, we 
provided a $1.5 million irrevocable letter of credit with a three-year term.

The gain on sale of $39.7 million was deferred as a result of our continuing involvement under the master lease 
agreements with the purchaser. The hotel pad was leased to a hotel operator under a ground lease at the date of 
sale. However, the hotel tenant had not commenced rent payments under the ground lease or construction of its 
building. At the date of the sale, primarily because of the uncertainty related to the hotel tenant’s performance under 
its ground lease, our estimated maximum probable exposure to loss using a probability-weighted assessment of 
future lease payments based on the master lease agreements exceeded the gain on sale. The rent payments under 
the master lease agreements represent continuing support obligations and are recorded as a reduction of the 
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deferred gain. We recognized $24.3 million of the gain during third-quarter 2017 and $11.3 million remains deferred 
at December 31, 2017 (see Note 11).

Barton Creek
The first phase of Barton Creek Village includes a 22,366-square-foot retail complex that was fully occupied at 
December 31, 2017. In February 2017, we sold the 3,085-square-foot bank building in Barton Creek Village and an 
adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land for $3.1 million (see Note 11). We intend to explore opportunities to sell 
the retail complex later this year depending on market conditions. 

Circle C
In 2015, we sold our Austin-area Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial properties, both located in the 
Circle C community. The Parkside Village retail project, which we owned in a joint venture with LCHM Holdings, 
LLC, consisted of 90,184 leasable square feet and was sold for $32.5 million. The 5700 Slaughter retail project, 
which we previously wholly owned, consisted of 25,698 leasable square feet and was sold for $12.5 million. See 
Note 11 for further discussion.

Lantana
Lantana is a partially developed, mixed-use real-estate development project. As of December 31, 2017, we had 
remaining entitlements for approximately 480,000 square feet of office and retail use on 55 acres. Regional utility 
and road infrastructure is in place with capacity to serve Lantana at full build-out as permitted under our existing 
entitlements. In 2017, construction commenced on the first phase of Lantana Place, a 320,000 square foot mixed-
use development project in southwest Austin. The first phase will be anchored by a 12-screen Moviehouse, a state 
of the art movie theater that provides a high-quality dining experience. We expect to complete construction of 
Moviehouse in mid-2018. 

W Austin Hotel & Residences
The W Austin Hotel & Residences has 38,316 square feet of leasable office space, including 9,000 square feet 
occupied by our corporate office, and 18,327 square feet of retail space. As of December 31, 2017, both the office 
and retail space were substantially fully occupied.

Magnolia
The Magnolia project is an HEB-anchored retail project planned for 351,000 square feet of commercial space. 
Planning and infrastructure work by the city of Magnolia is complete and road expansion by the Texas Department 
of Transportation is in progress and expected to be completed in early-2018. The HEB store is currently expected to 
open in 2020. 

West Killeen Market
In 2015, we acquired approximately 21 acres in Killeen, Texas, to develop the West Killeen Market project, an HEB-
anchored retail project with 44,000 square feet of commercial space and three pad sites adjacent to a 90,000 
square-foot HEB grocery store. Construction began in August 2016 and was completed on schedule and under 
budget in June 2017. The HEB store opened in April 2017. As of December 31, 2017, leases for approximately 60 
percent of the space at West Killeen Market have been executed, and leasing for the remaining space continues. 
We intend to explore opportunities to sell West Killeen Market later this year depending on leasing progress and 
market conditions.

Jones Crossing
In September 2017, we entered in to a $36.8 million loan to finance the construction of Phases 1 and 2, the retail 
component, of Stratus' Jones Crossing project, a new HEB-anchored, mixed-use development in College Station, 
Texas. The Jones Crossing project is expected to total approximately 258,000 square feet of commercial space, 
including a 106,000 square-foot HEB grocery store. Construction of the retail component of the Jones Crossing 
project began in September 2017, and the HEB grocery store is expected to open in August 2018.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We are continually evaluating the development and sale potential of our properties and will continue to consider 
opportunities to enter into transactions involving our properties, including possible joint ventures or other 
arrangements. As a result, and because of numerous other factors affecting our business activities as described 
herein, our past operating results are not necessarily indicative of our future results. We use operating income or 
loss to measure the performance of each operating segment. Corporate, eliminations and other includes 
consolidated general and administrative expenses, which primarily consist of employee salaries and other costs.

The following table summarizes our operating results for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Operating income (loss):   

Real estate operations $ 522 $ 824 $ 3,671
Leasing operations 24,217

a
2,369 22,514

b

Hotel 6,553 8,058 5,065
Entertainment 4,045 2,546 3,086
Corporate, eliminations and other (12,100) (12,620) (8,604)

Operating income $ 23,237 $ 1,177 $ 25,732
Interest expense, net $ (6,742) $ (9,408) $ (4,065)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ — $ — $ 3,218
Net income (loss) $ 3,884 c $ (5,999) $ 17,595
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests in

subsidiaries $ (5) $ — $ (5,418) d

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 3,879 $ (5,999) $ 12,177

a. Includes the recognition of a gain of $24.3 million associated with the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway and $11.3 million remains 
deferred at December 31, 2017. Also includes a $1.1 million gain on the sale of a 3,085-square-foot bank building and an 
adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek. These gains were partially offset by a $2.5 million profit 
participation charge associated with the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway.

b. Includes a gain of $20.7 million on the sales of our Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial developments.
c. Includes a tax charge totaling $7.6 million to reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets as a result of U.S. tax reform 

(see Note 7).
d. Primarily relates to Canyon-Johnson's share in the Block 21 Joint Venture, which we acquired in 2015.

We have four operating segments: Real Estate Operations, Leasing Operations, Hotel and Entertainment (see Note 
10). The following is a discussion of our operating results by segment.

Real Estate Operations
The following table summarizes our Real Estate Operations results for the years ended December 31 (in 
thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Revenues:   

Developed property sales $ 10,286 $ 10,223 $ 12,320
Undeveloped property sales 544 73 1,175
Commissions and other 314 454 848

Total revenues 11,144 10,750 14,343
Cost of sales, including depreciation 10,609 9,926 10,672
Loss on sales of assets 13 — —
Operating income $ 522 $ 824 $ 3,671
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Developed Property Sales.  The following table summarizes our developed property sales for the years ended 
December 31 (in thousands):

 2017 2016 2015

 
Lots/
Units Revenues

Average
Cost per
Lot/Unit

Lots/
Units Revenues

Average
Cost per
Lot/Unit

Lots/
Units Revenues

Average
Cost per
Lot/Unit

Barton Creek   
Amarra Drive:

Phase II lots 1 $ 560 $ 193 1 $ 550 $ 190 — $ — $ —
Phase III lots 6 4,090 292 6 4,408 338 10 6,955 334
Amarra Villas 1 2,193 1,886 — — — — — —

Circle C
Meridian 12 3,443 162 19 5,265 156 19 5,365 160

Total Residential 20 $ 10,286 26 $ 10,223 29 $ 12,320

Undeveloped Property Sales.  In 2017, we sold a six-acre tract of land at the Circle C community, which had 
entitlements for 14,000 square feet of commercial space, for $0.5 million. In 2015, we sold a nine-acre tract of land 
in Austin, Texas, with entitlements for approximately 20,000 square feet of commercial space for $1.2 million. 

Commissions and Other.  Commissions and other primarily includes sales commissions, design fees and sales of 
our development fee credits to third parties. We received the development fee credits as part of the Circle C 
settlement (see Note 9).  

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales includes cost of property sold, project operating and marketing expenses and allocated 
overhead costs, partly offset by reductions for certain municipal utility district (MUD) reimbursements. Cost of sales 
totaled $10.6 million in 2017, $9.9 million in 2016 and $10.7 million in 2015. The increase in cost of sales in 2017, 
compared with 2016, primarily reflects higher costs associated with the sale of the Amarra Villas townhome in 2017. 
The decrease in cost of sales in 2016, compared with 2015, primarily reflects fewer Barton Creek lot sales in 2016. 

Cost of sales for our real estate operations also includes significant recurring costs (including property taxes, 
maintenance and marketing), which totaled $4.3 million in 2017, $4.5 million in 2016 and $3.5 million in 2015. The 
increase in these recurring costs for 2016, compared with 2015, primarily reflects higher property taxes and 
homeowner association assessments associated with Barton Creek lots not yet sold.

Leasing Operations
The following table summarizes our Leasing Operations results for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

 2017a 2016 2015ab

Rental revenue $ 8,856 $ 10,449 $ 6,179
Rental cost of sales, excluding depreciation 4,829 4,936 2,838
Depreciation 2,693 3,144 1,556
Profit participation 2,538

c
— —

Gain on sales of assets (25,421) — (20,729)
Operating income $ 24,217 $ 2,369 $ 22,514

a. Includes the results of the The Oaks at Lakeway through February 21, 2017 (see Note 11).
b. Includes the results of the Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial properties through July 2, 2015 (see Note 11).
c. Relates to the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway (see Note 11).

Rental Revenue.  Rental revenue primarily includes revenue from the office and retail space at the W Austin Hotel & 
Residences, Barton Creek Village, Santal Phase I, The Oaks at Lakeway (which was sold in February 2017), and 
Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter, which were both sold in 2015. The decrease in rental revenue in 2017, 
compared with 2016, primarily reflects the sales of The Oaks at Lakeway in February 2017, partly offset by an 
increase in revenue from Santal Phase I. The increase in rental revenue in 2016, compared with 2015, primarily 
reflects rental revenues from The Oaks at Lakeway and Santal Phase I, partially offset by a decrease related to the 
sales of Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter.
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Rental Cost of Sales.  Rental costs of sales, excluding depreciation, totaled $4.8 million in 2017, compared with 
$4.9 million in 2016 and $2.8 million in 2015. The decrease in rental costs in 2017, compared with 2016, primarily 
reflects the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, mostly offset by increased operating expenses associated with Santal 
Phase I. The increase in rental costs in 2016, compared with 2015, primarily reflects increased operating costs 
relating to The Oaks at Lakeway and Santal Phase I, partially offset by a decrease in operating expenses related to 
the sales of Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter. 

Depreciation.  Depreciation costs totaled $2.7 million in 2017, compared with $3.1 million in 2016 and $1.6 million in 
2015. The decrease in 2017, compared with 2016, primarily reflects lower depreciation costs associated with The 
Oaks at Lakeway, partially offset by higher depreciation costs associated with Santal Phase I. The increase in 2016, 
compared with 2015, primarily reflects higher depreciation costs relating to The Oaks at Lakeway and Santal Phase 
I.

Gain on Sales of Assets.  During 2017, we recorded a $25.4 million gain on the sales of assets, primarily related to 
the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway and a bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton 
Creek. During 2015, we recorded a $13.6 million gain on the sale of Parkside Village and a $7.1 million gain on the 
sale of 5700 Slaughter. 

Hotel
The following table summarizes our Hotel results for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Hotel revenue $ 38,681 $ 40,727 $ 41,651
Hotel cost of sales, excluding depreciation 28,584 29,248 30,789
Depreciation 3,544 3,421 5,797
Operating income $ 6,553 $ 8,058 $ 5,065

Hotel Revenue. Hotel revenue primarily includes revenue from W Austin Hotel room reservations and food and 
beverage sales. Revenue per available room (RevPAR), which is calculated by dividing total room revenue by the 
average total rooms available during the year, was $253 in 2017, compared with $259 in 2016 and $279 in 2015. In 
2015 and 2016, over 2,600 new hotel rooms were added to the Austin hotel market, and approximately 600 more 
rooms were added in 2017. The increase in competition from several newly completed hotels in the downtown 
Austin area, including the anticipated opening of additional rooms during 2018, is expected to impact hotel 
revenues.

Hotel Cost of Sales. Hotel operating costs totaled $28.6 million in 2017, $29.2 million in 2016 and $30.8 million in 
2015. Lower costs in 2017, compared with 2016 and 2015, primarily reflect lower variable costs related to lower 
revenue.

Hotel Depreciation. Hotel depreciation totaled $3.5 million in 2017. Hotel depreciation decreased to $3.4 million in 
2016, compared to $5.8 million in 2015, primarily reflecting certain furniture and equipment being fully depreciated 
as of December 31, 2015.

Entertainment
The following table summarizes our Entertainment results for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Entertainment revenue $ 23,232 $ 19,705 $ 19,800
Entertainment cost of sales, excluding depreciation 17,719 15,698 15,426
Depreciation 1,523 1,461 1,288
Gain on sale of assets (55) — —
Operating income $ 4,045 $ 2,546 $ 3,086

Entertainment Revenue. Entertainment revenue primarily reflects the results of operations for ACL Live, including 
ticket sales, revenue from private events, sponsorships, personal seat license sales and suite sales, and sales of 
concessions and merchandise. Entertainment revenue also reflects revenues associated with events hosted at 
venues other than ACL Live, including 3TEN ACL Live, as well as the results of the Stageside Productions joint 
venture with Pedernales Entertainment LLC. Revenues from the Entertainment segment will vary from period to 
period as a result of factors such as the price of tickets and number of tickets sold, as well as the number and type 
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of events hosted at ACL Live and 3TEN ACL Live. Entertainment revenue increased in 2017, compared with 2016 
and 2015, primarily reflecting higher ticket sales at ACL Live from headliners such as Dave Chappelle and Louis 
CK, and growing visibility of our 3TEN ACL Live venue, which opened in March 2016. 

Certain key operating statistics specific to the concert and event hosting industry are included below to provide 
additional information regarding our ACL Live and 3TEN ACL Live operating performance, for the years ended 
December 31. 

 2017 2016 2015
ACL Live
Events:

Events hosted 224 223 210
Estimated attendance 297,100 237,000 245,000
Ancillary net revenue per attendee $ 40.47 $ 46.21 $ 44.89

Ticketing:
Number of tickets sold 221,340 175,023 168,506
Gross value of tickets sold (in thousands) $ 13,392 $ 9,679 $ 11,191

3TEN ACL Livea

Events:
Events hosted 228 162 —
Estimated attendance 40,600 25,500 —
Ancillary net revenue per attendee $ 42.02 $ 35.19 —

Ticketing:
Number of tickets sold 18,770 12,777 —
Gross value of tickets sold (in thousands) $ 430 $ 289 —

a.  This venue opened in March 2016.

Entertainment Cost of Sales. Entertainment cost of sales, excluding depreciation, totaled $17.7 million in 2017, 
compared with $15.7 million in 2016 and $15.4 million in 2015. Entertainment costs were higher in 2017, compared 
with 2016 and 2015, primarily reflecting higher production costs for larger events. 

Corporate, Eliminations and Other
Corporate, eliminations and other (see Note 10) includes consolidated general and administrative expenses, which 
primarily consist of employee salaries and other costs. Consolidated general and administrative expenses totaled 
$11.4 million in 2017, $12.2 million in 2016 and $8.1 million in 2015. Beginning January 1, 2016, general and 
administrative expenses are managed on a consolidated basis and are not allocated to our operating segments. 
The segment disclosures for 2015 have been recast to be consistent with 2016. Costs were higher for 2016, 
compared with 2017 and 2015, primarily reflecting higher legal and consulting fees mainly because of $3.1 million 
associated with Stratus' successful proxy contest and review of strategic alternatives. Corporate, eliminations and 
other also includes eliminations of intersegment amounts incurred by the four operating segments.

Non-Operating Results
Interest Expense, Net.  Interest costs (before capitalized interest) totaled $12.6 million in 2017, $15.7 million in 2016 
and $9.5 million in 2015. The decrease in interest costs in 2017, compared with 2016, primarily reflects lower 
average debt balances resulting from repayment of the loan for The Oaks at Lakeway after its sale in February 
2017. The increase in interest expense in 2016, compared with 2015, primarily reflects higher average debt 
balances associated with refinancing the W Austin Hotel & Residences and higher interest rates.

Capitalized interest totaled $5.9 million in 2017, $6.3 million in 2016 and $5.5 million in 2015, and is primarily 
related to development activities at Barton Creek in 2017, and development activities at Barton Creek and The 
Oaks at Lakeway in 2016 and 2015.

Gain (Loss) on Interest Rate Derivative Instruments. We recorded gains of $0.3 million in 2017 and $0.2 million in 
2016 associated with changes in the fair value of our interest rate derivative instruments. In 2015, we recorded a 
loss of $(0.7) million associated with the recognition of cumulative changes in the fair value of our interest rate swap 
agreement because it no longer qualified for hedge accounting treatment and changes in the fair value of our 
interest rate cap agreement. See Note 5 for further discussion.



31

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt.  We recorded losses on early extinguishment of debt of $0.5 million in 2017 
associated with the repayment of The Oaks at Lakeway Loan and $0.8 million in 2016 related to the repayment of 
the Bank of America loan with the proceeds from the Goldman Sachs loan. 

Equity in Unconsolidated Affiliates' (Loss) Income.  We account for our interests in our unconsolidated affiliates, 
primarily Crestview Station, using the equity method. Our equity in the net income (loss) of these entities totaled 
less than $(0.1) million in 2017, $0.1 million in 2016 and $(1.3) million in 2015. The loss in 2015 primarily reflects 
operating losses at two of these affiliates. 

(Provision for) Benefit from Income Taxes.  We recorded a (provision for) benefit from income taxes of $(13.9) 
million in 2017, $2.8 million in 2016 and $(5.6) million in 2015. Each period also includes the Texas state margin 
tax. The difference between our consolidated effective income tax rate for 2017 and the U.S. federal statutory 
income tax rate of 35 percent was primarily attributable to a $7.6 million charge to reduce the carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets based on lower federal corporate tax rates associated with U.S. tax reform (see Note 7). The 
difference between our consolidated effective income tax rate for 2016 and the U.S. federal statutory income tax 
rate of 35 percent was primarily attributable to the Texas state margin tax. The difference between our consolidated 
effective income tax rate for 2015 and the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35 percent was primarily 
attributable to state margin taxes, partially offset by the tax effect of income attributable to non-controlling interests. 

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries.  Net income attributable to noncontrolling 
interests in subsidiaries totaled $5.4 million in 2015 and primarily related to our former joint venture partner's 
interest in the W Austin Hotel & Residences project (see Note 2). 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2012, we sold 7500 Rialto, an office building in Lantana. In connection with the sale, we recognized a gain of 
$5.1 million and deferred a gain of $5.0 million because of a guaranty provided to the lender in connection with the 
buyer's assumption of the loan related to 7500 Rialto. The guaranty was released and we recognized the deferred 
gain totaling $5.0 million ($3.2 million to net income attributable to common stockholders) in 2015.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Volatility in the real estate market, including the markets in which we operate, can impact sales of our properties 
from period to period. However, we believe that the unique nature and location of our assets will provide us positive 
cash flows over time. See "Business Strategy and Related Risks" for further discussion of our liquidity.

Comparison of Year-to-Year Cash Flows
Operating Activities.  Cash provided by (used in) operating activities totaled $10.3 million in 2017, $(3.7) million in 
2016 and $(1.8) million in 2015. Expenditures for purchases and development of real estate properties totaled 
$14.4 million in 2017, $14.6 million in 2016 and $26.2 million in 2015 primarily related to the development of our 
Barton Creek properties. The increase in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other primarily relates to 
increased development activity in 2017. During 2017, we also paid $2.2 million of the $2.5 million profit participation 
due to HEB as a result of the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway. 

We received MUD reimbursements relating to substantially all of the infrastructure costs incurred to date in Barton 
Creek, totaling $13.8 million in 2017, $12.3 million in 2016 and $5.3 million in 2015. In November 2017, the city of 
Magnolia and the state of Texas approved the creation of a MUD, which will provide an opportunity for us to recoup
approximately $26 million over the life of the project for future road and utility infrastructure costs incurred in 
connection with our development of the Magnolia project.

Investing Activities.  Cash provided by (used in) investing activities totaled $70.6 million in 2017, $(28.2) million in 
2016 and $(12.6) million in 2015. The year 2017 included $117.3 million in proceeds from the sales of The Oaks at 
Lakeway, and a bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek. The year 2015 
included $43.3 million in proceeds from the sales of the Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial 
properties. Capital expenditures totaled $34.1 million in 2017, primarily related to the development of Lantana 
Place, Santal Phase II, West Killeen Market and Jones Crossing. Capital expenditures totaled $28.2 million in 2016 
and $55.2 million in 2015, and primarily included costs to develop Leasing Operations' properties related to Santal 
Phase I and The Oaks at Lakeway projects. 



32

In 2017, Stratus also made payments totaling $2.2 million under its master lease obligations associated with the 
sale of The Oaks at Lakeway. The use of cash for site development escrow deposit and other, net during the year 
2017, primarily relates to restricted cash associated with the Jones Crossing project.

Financing Activities.  Cash (used in) provided by financing activities totaled $(79.8) million in 2017, $28.5 million in 
2016 and $1.8 million in 2015. Net repayments on the Comerica Bank credit facility totaled $20.8 million in 2017, 
compared with net borrowings of $13.4 million in 2016 and $10.1 million in 2015. Net repayments on other project 
and term loans totaled $49.0 million in 2017, primarily for The Oaks at Lakeway term loan, compared with net 
borrowings of $16.8 million in 2016 and $56.6 million in 2015. In 2016, we used $150 million of borrowings under 
the Goldman Sachs loan to refinance our Bank of America loan ($129.5 million) for the W Austin Hotel & 
Residences. Other project borrowings in 2016 were primarily used to fund the development of the Santal Phase I 
and The Oaks at Lakeway projects. In 2015, we borrowed $32.3 million under project loans and $20.0 million under 
our Comerica credit facility, plus $9.7 million of cash that was used to purchase Canyon-Johnson's noncontrolling 
interest in the Block 21 Joint Venture for $62.0 million. Other project borrowings in 2015 were primarily associated 
with Santal Phase I and The Oaks at Lakeway projects. Noncontrolling interest distributions for the Parkside Village 
Joint Venture and the Block 21 Joint Venture totaled $4.2 million in 2015. 

See Note 6 and “Credit Facility and Other Financing Arrangements” for a discussion of our outstanding debt at 
December 31, 2017.

On March 15, 2017, we announced that our Board, after receiving written consent from Comerica Bank, declared a 
special cash dividend of $1.00 per share, which was paid on April 18, 2017, to stockholders of record on March 31, 
2017. The special cash dividend was declared after the Board’s consideration of the results of the recent sale of 
The Oaks at Lakeway. The declaration of future dividends is at the discretion of our Board subject to the restrictions 
contained in our Comerica credit facility, which prohibit us from paying a dividend on our common stock without the 
bank's prior written consent. Comerica's approval of the special dividend declared in March 2017 is not indicative of 
the bank's willingness to approve future dividends.

In 2013, our Board approved an increase in the open market share purchase program from 0.7 million shares to 1.7 
million shares of our common stock. There were no purchases under this program during 2017, 2016 or 2015. As of 
December 31, 2017, a total of 991,695 shares of our common stock remain available under this program. Our ability 
to repurchase shares of our common stock is restricted by the terms of our Comerica credit facility, which prohibits 
us from repurchasing shares of our common stock without the bank's prior written consent.

Credit Facility and Other Financing Arrangements
At December 31, 2017, we had total debt of $221.5 million based on the principal amounts outstanding, compared 
with $291.1 million at December 31, 2016. The principal amounts of our debt outstanding at December 31, 2017, 
consisted of the following:

• $146.3 million under the Goldman Sachs loan.

• $25.8 million under the $52.5 million Comerica credit facility, which is comprised of a $45.0 million revolving 
line of credit, $19.2 million of which was available at December 31, 2017, and a $7.5 million letters of credit 
tranche, against which $4.1 million was committed and $3.4 million was available at December 31, 2017. 

• $32.1 million under the construction loan to fund Phase I of the multi-family development in Section N of 
Barton Creek (the Santal Phase I loan). 

• $5.3 million under the stand-alone revolving credit facility with Comerica Bank to fund the construction and 
development of the Amarra Villas (the Amarra Villas credit facility).

• $5.5 million under the construction loan with Southside Bank to fund the development and construction of 
the West Killeen Market retail project (the West Killeen Market construction loan).

• $5.1 million under the construction loan with Southside Bank to finance the development and construction 
of Phases 1 and 2, the retail component, of Jones Crossing (the Jones Crossing construction loan).
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• $3.4 million under the term loan with PlainsCapital Bank secured by assets at Barton Creek Village (the 
Barton Creek Village term loan). 

No amounts have been drawn under the construction loan with Southside Bank to finance the development and 
construction of the initial phase of Lantana Place, nor under the agreement with Comerica Bank to finance the 
development and construction of Santal Phase II.

Several of our financing instruments contain customary financial covenants. The Comerica credit facility, the Santal 
Phase I and Phase II loans, the Amarra Villas credit facility and the West Killeen Market construction loan include a 
requirement that we maintain a minimum total stockholders’ equity balance of $110.0 million. The Comerica credit 
facility also includes a requirement that we obtain Comerica's prior written consent for any common stock 
repurchases or dividend payments. As of December 31, 2017, Stratus' total stockholders' equity was $127.3 million 
and Stratus was in compliance with all financial covenants. See Note 6 for further discussion of our outstanding 
debt as of December 31, 2017. 

DEBT MATURITIES AND OTHER CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our total debt maturities based on the principal amounts outstanding as of 
December 31, 2017 (in thousands): 

 2018  2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter Total
Goldman Sachs loan $ 2,086 $ 2,207 $ 2,313 $ 2,470 $ 2,613 $ 134,636 $ 146,325
Santal Phase I loan — — 32,133 a — — — 32,133
Comerica credit facility 25,765 b — — — — — 25,765
Amarra Villas credit facility — 5,342 — — — — 5,342
West Killeen Market construction
loan — — — — 5,544 — 5,544

Barton Creek Village term loan 100 105 109 114 119 2,877 3,424
Jones Crossing construction loan — — — — — 5,066 5,066
Total $ 27,951  $ 7,654 $ 34,555 $ 2,584 $ 8,276 $ 142,579 $ 223,599

a. Stratus has the option to extend the maturity date for two additional twelve-month periods, subject to certain debt service 
coverage conditions.

b. On November 7, 2017, Stratus extended the maturity by one year to November 30, 2018 (see Note 6).

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations, other than debt, as of December 31, 2017 (in 
thousands):

 Total 2018  2019-2020 2021-2022 Thereafter
Scheduled interest payment obligationsa $ 14,910 $ 4,236 $ 5,045 $ 2,723 $ 2,906
Construction contracts 47,497 47,497 — — —
Operating lease obligations 113,090 372 808 865 111,045
Total $ 175,497 $ 52,105 $ 5,853 $ 3,588 $ 113,951

a. Scheduled interest payments were calculated using stated coupon rates for fixed-rate debt and interest rates applicable at 
December 31, 2017, for variable-rate debt. 

Not reflected in the table above are the master lease obligations entered into in conjunction with the sale of The 
Oaks at Lakeway. As more fully explained in Note 11, the master lease payment obligation currently approximates 
$180 thousand per month and is expected to decline as vacant space is leased and the new leases are assigned to 
the purchaser. Stratus currently estimates its aggregate master lease payment obligation through 2022, the date all 
master leases are currently projected to be terminated, will total $6.9 million.

We had commitments under noncancelable contracts totaling $47.5 million at December 31, 2017. 

We also had guarantees related to the W Austin Hotel & Residences at December 31, 2017 (see Note 6).
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DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

We derive our revenues from the acquisition, entitlement, development, management, operation and sale of our 
commercial, hotel, entertainment, and multi- and single-family residential real estate properties. Our results of 
operations can vary significantly with fluctuations in the market prices of real estate, which are influenced by 
numerous factors, including interest rate levels. Changes in interest rates also affect interest expense on our debt. 

We also have an interest rate swap agreement with Comerica Bank that was previously designated as a cash flow 
hedge with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income. The instrument effectively converted the 
variable rate portion of Parkside Village's loan from Comerica Bank (the Parkside Village loan) from one-month 
LIBOR to a fixed rate of 2.3 percent. On July 2, 2015, we completed the sale of the Parkside Village property and 
fully repaid the amount outstanding under the Parkside Village loan. We assumed the interest rate swap agreement 
and, as a result, the instrument no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Accordingly, the liability balance of $0.6 
million on July 2, 2015, was reclassified to the statement of operations as a loss on interest rate derivative 
instruments and future changes in the fair value of the instrument are being recorded in the statement of operations, 
including gains of $0.3 million in 2017 and $0.2 million in 2016, and a loss of $0.1 million in 2015. See Note 5  for 
further discussion.

At December 31, 2017, $73.9 million of our total principal amount of debt outstanding of $223.6 million bears 
interest at variable rates. An increase of 100 basis points in annual interest rates for this variable-rate debt would 
increase our annual interest costs by $0.7 million. 

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Refer to Note 1 for discussion of new accounting standards.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Refer to Note 9 for discussion of our off-balance sheet arrangements.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking 
statements in which we discuss our future performance. Forward-looking statements are all statements other than 
statements of historical fact, such as statements regarding the implementation and potential results of our active 
development plan, and projections or expectations related to operational and financial performance or liquidity, 
reimbursements for infrastructure costs, financing and regulatory matters, development plans and sales of 
properties, including exploring opportunities to sell West Killeen Market, leasing activities, timeframes for 
development, construction and completion of our projects, capital expenditures, possible joint venture or other 
arrangements, our projections with respect to our obligations under the master lease agreements entered into in 
connection with the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway in 2017, and other plans and objectives of management for future 
operations and activities, and future dividend payments. The words “anticipate,” “may,” “can,” “plan,” “believe,” 
“potential,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “likely,” “will,” “should,” “to be” and any similar expressions and/or 
statements that are not historical facts are intended to identify those assertions as forward-looking statements. 

Under our Comerica credit facility, we are not permitted to pay dividends on common stock without Comerica’s prior 
written consent, which was obtained in connection with the special dividend paid in April 2017, but not required to 
be granted by Comerica in the future. The declaration of dividends is at the discretion of our Board, subject to 
restrictions under our Comerica credit facility, and will depend on our financial results, cash requirements, projected 
compliance with covenants in our debt agreements, outlook and other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Our 
discussion also contains forward-looking statements and estimates regarding the anticipated effects of U.S. tax 
reform. These statements and estimates are based on our current interpretation of this legislation, which may 
change as a result of additional implementation guidance, changes in assumptions, and potential future refinements 
of or revisions to calculations.

We caution readers that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and actual results 
may differ materially from those anticipated, projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Important 
factors that can cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements 
include, but are not limited to, our ability to refinance and service our debt and the availability of financing for 
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development projects and other corporate purposes, our ability to sell properties at prices our Board considers 
acceptable, a decrease in the demand for real estate in the Austin, Texas area and other select Texas markets 
where Stratus operates, changes in economic and business conditions, reductions in discretionary spending by 
consumers and corporations, competition from other real estate developers, hotel operators and/or entertainment 
venue operators and promoters, the termination of sales contracts or letters of intent due to, among other factors, 
the failure of one or more closing conditions or market changes, the failure to attract customers for our 
developments or such customers' failure to satisfy their purchase commitments, our ability to secure qualifying 
tenants for the space subject to the master lease agreements entered into in connection with the sale of The Oaks 
at Lakeway in 2017 and to assign such leases to the purchaser and remove the corresponding property from the 
master leases, increases in interest rates, declines in the market value of our assets, increases in operating costs, 
including real estate taxes and the cost of construction materials, changes in external perception of the W Austin 
Hotel, changes in consumer preferences, changes in laws, regulations or the regulatory environment affecting the 
development of real estate, opposition from special interest groups with respect to development projects, and other 
factors described in more detail under the heading “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A. of this Form 10-K.

Investors are cautioned that many of the assumptions upon which our forward-looking statements are based are 
likely to change after the forward-looking statements are made. Further, we may make changes to our business 
plans that could affect our results. We caution investors that we do not intend to update our forward-looking 
statements more frequently than quarterly notwithstanding any changes in our assumptions, business plans, actual 
experience, or other changes, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements.
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Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Stratus Properties Inc.’s (the Company’s) management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal control over financial reporting for the Company. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 
13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as a process designed by, or under the 
supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the Company’s 
Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the Company’s assets;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
Company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

The Company's management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, assessed the 
effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the fiscal year covered by this annual 
report on Form 10-K. In making this assessment, the Company's management used the criteria set forth in Internal 
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 
2017, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on the COSO criteria.

BKM Sowan Horan, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm who audited the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.

/s/ William H. Armstrong III /s/ Erin D. Pickens
William H. Armstrong III Erin D. Pickens
Chairman of the Board, President Senior Vice President
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Stratus Properties Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited Stratus Properties Inc.’s (the Company’s) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of the Company, and our report dated March 16, 
2018, expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for 
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered 
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal 
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also 
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

/s/ BKM Sowan Horan, LLP

Austin, Texas
March 16, 2018 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Stratus Properties Inc. 

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Stratus Properties Inc. (the Company) as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), 
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the 
related notes and schedule (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 16, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with 
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal 
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to 
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ BKM Sowan Horan, LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2010

Austin, Texas
March 16, 2018 
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STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands, Except Par Value)
 

 December 31,
 2017 2016
ASSETS   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,611 $ 13,597
Restricted cash 24,779 11,892
Real estate held for sale 22,612 21,236
Real estate under development 118,484  111,373
Land available for development 14,804  19,153
Real estate held for investment, net 188,390  239,719
Deferred tax assets 11,461 17,223
Other assets 10,852 17,982
Total assets $ 405,993 $ 452,175

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 22,809 $ 6,734
Accrued liabilities, including taxes 13,429 13,240
Debt 221,470 291,102
Deferred gain 11,320 —
Other liabilities 9,575 10,073

Total liabilities 278,603 321,149

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6, 9 and 11)

Equity:   
Stockholders’ equity:   

Common stock, par value of $0.01 per share, 150,000 shares authorized,
9,250 and 9,203 shares issued, respectively and
8,134 and 8,098 shares outstanding, respectively 93 92

Capital in excess of par value of common stock 185,395 192,762
Accumulated deficit (37,121) (41,143)
Common stock held in treasury, 1,117 shares and 1,105 shares

at cost, respectively (21,057) (20,760)
Total stockholders’ equity 127,310 130,951

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 80 75
Total equity 127,390 131,026

Total liabilities and equity $ 405,993 $ 452,175

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Revenues:   

Real estate operations $ 11,001 $ 10,719 $ 14,277
Leasing operations 7,981 9,682 5,641
Hotel 38,360 40,418 41,346
Entertainment 22,998 19,522 19,607

Total revenues 80,340 80,341 80,871
Cost of sales:   

Real estate operations 10,378 9,702 10,425
Leasing operations 4,797 4,903 2,772
Hotel 28,478 29,090 30,702
Entertainment 17,121 15,223 15,169
Depreciation 7,853 8,082 8,743

Total cost of sales 68,627 67,000 67,811
General and administrative expenses 11,401 12,164 8,057
Profit participation in sale of The Oaks at Lakeway 2,538 — —
Gain on sales of assets (25,463) — (20,729)

Total 57,103 79,164 55,139
Operating income 23,237 1,177 25,732
Interest expense, net (6,742) (9,408) (4,065)
Gain (loss) on interest rate derivative instruments 293 218 (724)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (532) (837) —
Other income, net 1,581 21 309
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in unconsolidated affiliates' (loss)

income 17,837 (8,829) 21,252
Equity in unconsolidated affiliates' (loss) income (49) 51 (1,299)
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes (13,904) 2,779 (5,576)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 3,884 (5,999) 14,377
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes — — 3,218
Net income (loss) 3,884 (5,999) 17,595
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries (5) — (5,418)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 3,879 $ (5,999) $ 12,177

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders:   
Continuing operations $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.11
Discontinued operations — — 0.40

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.51

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders:
Continuing operations $ 0.47 $ (0.74) $ 1.11
Discontinued operations — — 0.40

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders $ 0.47 $ (0.74) $ 1.51

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding:   
Basic 8,122 8,089 8,058
Diluted 8,171 8,089 8,091

Dividends declared per share of common stock $ 1.00 $ — $ —

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



41

STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In Thousands)

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015

Net income (loss) $ 3,884 $ (5,999) $ 17,595

Other comprehensive income, net of taxes:
Income on interest rate swap agreement — — 458

Other comprehensive income — — 458

Total comprehensive income (loss) 3,884 (5,999) 18,053
Total comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests (5) — (5,597)
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 3,879 $ (5,999) $ 12,456

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



42

 STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Cash flow from operating activities:   

Net income (loss) $ 3,884 $ (5,999) $ 17,595
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)   

operating activities:   
Depreciation 7,853 8,082 8,743
Cost of real estate sold 5,774 4,899 6,465
Gain on sale of 7500 Rialto, net of tax — — (3,218)
Gain on sales of assets (25,463) — (20,729)
U.S. tax reform charge 7,580 — —
(Gain) loss on interest rate derivative contracts (293) (218) 724
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 532 837 —
Debt issuance cost amortization and stock-based compensation 1,573 1,681 1,436
Equity in unconsolidated affiliates' loss (income) 49 (51) 1,299
(Decrease) increase in deposits (1,322) 584 450
Deferred income taxes, excluding U.S. tax reform charge (1,675) (1,894) 2,118
Purchases and development of real estate properties (14,395) (14,575) (26,237)
Municipal utility districts reimbursements 13,799 12,302 5,307
Decrease (increase) in other assets 2,231 (6,211) (2,983)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other 10,126 (3,157) 7,240

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 10,253 (3,720) (1,790)

Cash flow from investing activities:   
Capital expenditures (34,079) (28,215) (55,178)
Net proceeds from sales of assets 117,261 — 43,266
Payments on master lease obligations (2,196) — —
Site development escrow deposit and other, net (10,405) (32) (678)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 70,581 (28,247) (12,590)

Cash flow from financing activities:   
Borrowings from credit facility 47,200 32,969 42,326
Payments on credit facility (67,981) (19,573) (32,263)
Borrowings from project loans 15,793 179,957 99,670
Payments on project and term loans (64,761) (163,120) (43,096)
Purchase of noncontrolling interest — — (61,991)
Cash dividend paid (8,133) — —
Stock-based awards net (payments) proceeds (235) (368) 1,634
Noncontrolling interests distributions — — (4,244)
Financing costs (1,703) (1,337) (265)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (79,820) 28,528 1,771
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,014 (3,439) (12,609)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,597 17,036 29,645
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 14,611 $ 13,597 $ 17,036

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which include information regarding noncash transactions, are 
an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business and Principles of Consolidation.  Stratus Properties Inc. (Stratus), a Delaware corporation, is engaged 
primarily in the acquisition, entitlement, development, management, operation and sale of commercial, hotel, 
entertainment, and multi-family and single-family residential real estate properties, primarily located in the Austin, 
Texas area, and also projects in certain other select markets in Texas. The real estate development and marketing 
operations of Stratus are conducted primarily through its wholly owned subsidiaries. Stratus consolidates its wholly 
owned subsidiaries, subsidiaries in which Stratus has a controlling interest and variable interest entities (VIEs) in 
which Stratus is deemed the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation.

Concentration of Risks.  Stratus primarily conducts its operations in Austin, Texas. Consequently, any significant 
economic downturn in the Austin market could potentially have an effect on Stratus’ business, results of operations 
and financial condition.

Use of Estimates.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts reported in these financial statements and accompanying notes. The more significant areas requiring 
the use of management estimates include the estimates of future cash flow from development and sale of real 
estate properties used in the assessment of impairments; profit recognition related to the sales of real estate; 
deferred taxes and related valuation allowances; income taxes; allocation of certain indirect costs; and asset lives 
for depreciation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents.  Stratus considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less 
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Real Estate and Leasing Assets.  Real estate held for sale is stated at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to 
sell. The cost of real estate held for sale includes acquisition, development, construction and carrying costs, and 
other related costs incurred through the development stage. Real estate under development and land available for 
development are stated at cost. Real estate held for investment, which includes the hotel and entertainment venue 
at the W Austin Hotel & Residences and Stratus' Leasing Operations assets, is stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation. Stratus capitalizes interest on funds used in developing properties from the date of initiation of 
development activities through the date the property is substantially complete and ready for use, sale or lease. 
Common costs are allocated based on the relative fair value of individual land parcels. Certain carrying costs are 
capitalized for properties currently under active development. Stratus capitalizes improvements that increase the 
value of Leasing Operations properties and have useful lives greater than one year. Costs related to repairs and 
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Stratus performs an impairment test when events or circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that Stratus considers indicators of impairment include significant 
decreases in market values, adverse changes in regulatory requirements (including environmental laws), significant 
budget overruns for properties under development, and current period or projected operating cash flow losses from 
properties held for investment. Impairment tests for properties held for investment and properties under 
development, involve the use of estimated future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the 
operation of the property and its eventual disposition. If projected undiscounted cash flow is less than the related 
carrying amount, then a reduction of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset to fair value is required. Generally, 
Stratus determines fair value using valuation techniques such as discounted expected future cash flows. 
Impairment tests for properties held for sale involve management estimates of fair value based on estimated market 
values for similar properties in similar locations and management estimates of costs to sell. If estimated fair value 
less costs to sell is less than the related carrying amount, then a reduction of the carrying amount of the asset to fair 
value less costs to sell is required.

Stratus recorded no impairment charges for the three-year period ended December 31, 2017. Should market 
conditions deteriorate in the future or other events occur that indicate the carrying amount of Stratus’ real estate 
assets may not be recoverable, Stratus will reevaluate the expected cash flows from each property to determine 
whether any impairment exists.
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Depreciation.  Properties associated with Leasing Operations are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated lives of 30 to 40 years. The hotel and entertainment venue properties are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated lives of 35 years. Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over a 3 to 15-year period. Tenant improvements are depreciated over the related lease terms.

Accrued Property Taxes.  Stratus estimates its property taxes based on prior year property tax payments and 
other current events that may impact the amount. Upon receipt of the property tax bill, Stratus adjusts its accrued 
property tax balance at year-end to the actual amount of taxes due for such year. Accrued property taxes included 
in accrued liabilities totaled $7.4 million at December 31, 2017, and $7.6 million at December 31, 2016. 

Revenue Recognition.  Revenues from property sales are recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the buyer, when the consideration received can be reasonably determined and when Stratus has 
completed its obligations to perform certain supplementary development activities, if any exist, at the time of the 
sale. Consideration is reasonably determined and considered likely of collection when Stratus has signed sales 
agreements and has determined that the buyer has demonstrated a commitment to pay. The buyer’s commitment to 
pay is supported by the level of its initial investment, Stratus’ assessment of the buyer’s credit standing and Stratus’ 
assessment of whether the buyer’s stake in the property is sufficient to motivate the buyer to honor its obligation to 
pay.

Stratus' revenues from hotel operations are primarily derived from room reservations and food and beverage sales. 
Revenue is recognized when rooms are occupied and services have been rendered. Taxes collected from 
customers and submitted to taxing authorities are not recorded in revenue. 

Stratus' revenues from entertainment operations are primarily derived from ticket sales, revenue from private 
events, sponsorships, personal seat license sales and suite sales, and sales of concessions and merchandise. 
Revenues from ticket sales are recognized after the corresponding performance occurs. Revenues from 
sponsorships and other revenue not related to a single event are classified as deferred revenue and generally 
amortized over the operating season or term of the contract. Revenues from concessions and merchandise sales 
are recognized at the time of sale.

Stratus recognizes its rental income on a straight-line basis based on the terms of its signed leases with tenants. 
Recoveries from tenants for taxes, insurance and other commercial property operating expenses are recognized as 
revenues in the period the related costs are incurred. Stratus recognizes sales commissions and management and 
development fees when earned, as properties are sold or when the services are performed. 

A summary of Stratus’ revenues follows (in thousands):

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Hotel $ 38,360 $ 40,418 $ 41,346
Entertainment 22,998 19,522 19,607
Developed property sales 10,286 10,223 12,320
Leasing Operations 7,981 9,682 5,641
Undeveloped property sales 544 73 1,175
Commissions and other 171 423 782

Total revenues $ 80,340 $ 80,341 $ 80,871
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Cost of Sales.  Cost of sales includes the cost of real estate sold as well as costs directly attributable to the 
properties sold such as marketing, maintenance and property taxes. Cost of sales also includes operating costs and 
depreciation for properties held for investment and municipal utility district reimbursements. A summary of Stratus’ 
cost of sales follows (in thousands):

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Hotel $ 28,478 $ 29,090 $ 30,702
Entertainment 17,121 15,223 15,169
Depreciation 7,853 8,082 8,743
Leasing Operations 4,797 4,903 2,772
Project expenses and allocation of overhead costs (see below) 4,343 4,473 3,546
Cost of developed property sales 3,890 5,156 6,386
Other, net 1,793 18 (71)
Cost of undeveloped property sales 352 55 564

Total cost of sales $ 68,627 $ 67,000 $ 67,811

Allocation of Overhead Costs.  Stratus allocates a portion of its overhead costs to both capitalized real estate 
costs and cost of sales based on the percentage of time certain employees worked in the related areas (i.e. costs of 
construction and development activities are capitalized to real estate under development, and costs of project 
management, sales and marketing activities are charged to expense as cost of sales). Stratus capitalizes only 
direct and certain indirect project costs associated with the acquisition, development and construction of a real 
estate project. Indirect costs include allocated costs associated with certain pooled resources (such as office 
supplies, telephone and postage) which are used to support Stratus’ development projects, as well as general and 
administrative functions. Allocations of pooled resources are based only on those employees directly responsible for 
development (i.e., project managers and subordinates). Stratus charges to expense indirect costs that do not 
clearly relate to a real estate project, such as all salaries and costs related to its Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer.

Municipal Utility District Reimbursements.  Stratus capitalizes infrastructure costs and receives Barton Creek 
municipal utility district (MUD) reimbursements for certain infrastructure costs incurred in the Barton Creek area. 
MUD reimbursements received for infrastructure projects are recorded as a reduction of the related asset’s carrying 
amount or cost of sales if the property has been sold. Stratus has long-term agreements with seven independent 
MUDs in Barton Creek to build the MUDs’ utility systems and to be eligible for future reimbursements for the related 
costs. 

In November 2017, the city of Magnolia and the state of Texas approved the creation of a MUD which will provide 
an opportunity for Stratus to recoup approximately $26 million over the life of the project for future road and utility 
infrastructure costs incurred in connection with its development of the Magnolia project, an HEB Grocery Company, 
L.P. (HEB)-anchored retail project planned for 351,000 square feet of commercial space. 

The amount and timing of MUD reimbursements depends upon the respective MUD having a sufficient tax base 
within its district to issue bonds and obtain the necessary state approval for the sale of the bonds. Because the 
timing of the issuance and approval of the bonds is subject to considerable uncertainty, coupled with the fact that 
interest rates on such bonds cannot be fixed until they are approved, the amounts associated with MUD 
reimbursements are not known until approximately one month before the MUD reimbursements are received. To the 
extent the reimbursements are less than the costs capitalized, Stratus records a loss when such determination is 
made. MUD reimbursements represent the actual amounts received.

Advertising Costs.  Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included as a component of cost of sales. 
Advertising costs totaled $1.0 million in 2017 and $0.9 million in both 2016 and 2015.

Income Taxes.  Stratus accounts for deferred income taxes under an asset and liability method, whereby deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the tax effects of temporary differences between the financial 
statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities, as measured by currently enacted tax rates. The effect on 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates or laws is recognized in income or loss in the 
period in which such changes are enacted. Stratus periodically evaluates the need for a valuation allowance to 
reduce deferred tax assets to estimated recoverable amounts. Stratus establishes a valuation allowance to reduce 
its deferred tax assets and records a corresponding charge to earnings if it is determined, based on available 
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evidence at the time, that it is more likely than not that any portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In 
evaluating the need for a valuation allowance, Stratus estimates future taxable income based on projections and 
ongoing tax strategies. This process involves significant management judgment about assumptions that are subject 
to change based on variances between projected and actual operating performance and changes in Stratus’ 
business environment or operating or financial plans. See Note 7 for further discussion.

Earnings Per Share.  Stratus’ basic net income (loss) per share of common stock was calculated by dividing the 
net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average shares of common stock 
outstanding during the period. A reconciliation of net income (loss) and weighted-average shares of common stock 
outstanding for purposes of calculating diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands, except per share 
amounts) follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016 2015

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3,884 $ (5,999) $ 14,377
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes — — 3,218
Net income (loss) $ 3,884 $ (5,999) $ 17,595
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries (5) — (5,418)
Net income (loss) attributable to Stratus common stockholders $ 3,879 $ (5,999) $ 12,177

Basic weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 8,122 8,089 8,058

Add shares issuable upon exercise or vesting of dilutive stock options
and restricted stock units (RSUs) 49 a — b 33 a

Diluted weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 8,171 8,089 8,091

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders:   
Continuing operations $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.11
Discontinued operations — — 0.40

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders $ 0.48 $ (0.74) $ 1.51

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders:
Continuing operations $ 0.47 $ (0.74) $ 1.11
Discontinued operations — — 0.40

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders $ 0.47 $ (0.74) $ 1.51

a. Excludes approximately 26 thousand shares of common stock for both 2017 and 2015 associated with anti-dilutive RSU's.
b. Excludes approximately 125 thousand shares of common stock for 2016 associated with outstanding stock options with 

exercise prices less than the average market price of Stratus' common stock, and RSUs that were anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation.  Compensation costs for share-based payments to employees are measured at fair 
value and charged to expense over the requisite service period for awards that are expected to vest. The fair value 
of stock options is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model. The fair value of RSUs and 
performance based RSUs is based on Stratus' stock price on the date of grant. Stratus estimates forfeitures at the 
time of grant and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates 
through the final vesting date of the awards. See Note 8 for further discussion.

New Accounting Standards.  In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an 
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) that provides a single comprehensive revenue recognition model, which will 
replace most existing revenue recognition guidance, and also requires expanded disclosures. The core principle of 
the model is that revenue is recognized when control of goods or services has been transferred to customers at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. For public entities, this ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, 
and interim reporting periods within that reporting period. Stratus adopted this ASU January 1, 2018, and will apply 
the modified retrospective approach under which any cumulative effect adjustment would be recorded to retained 
earnings as of the adoption date. Stratus has substantially completed its review of the impact of this guidance and 
does not expect the application of this guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements or on its 
revenue recognition policies or processes. Stratus continues to review the impact of the new guidance on its 
financial reporting and disclosures.
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In January 2016, FASB issued an ASU that amends the current guidance on the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. This ASU makes limited changes to existing guidance and amends certain disclosure 
requirements. For public entities, this ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 
2017. Stratus adopted this ASU effective January 1, 2018, and adoption did not have a material impact on its 
financial statements. 

In February 2016, FASB issued an ASU that will require lessees to recognize most leases on the balance sheet. 
This ASU allows lessees to make an accounting policy election to not recognize a lease asset and liability for leases 
with a term of 12 months or less and do not have a purchase option that is expected to be exercised. For public 
entities, this ASU is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. This ASU must be applied using the modified retrospective approach for leases that exist or are 
entered into after the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the financial statements. Stratus is currently 
evaluating the impact this guidance will have on its financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued an ASU that simplifies various aspects of the accounting for share-based payment
transactions, including the income tax consequences, statutory tax withholding requirements, an accounting policy
election for forfeitures and the classification on the statement of cash flows. Stratus adopted this ASU effective 
January 1, 2017, on a modified retrospective basis and recorded a cumulative effect adjustment of $143 thousand 
to its 2017 opening accumulated deficit balance.

NOTE 2. JOINT VENTURES WITH CANYON-JOHNSON URBAN FUND II, L.P., AND PEDERNALES 
ENTERTAINMENT, LLC 
On September 28, 2015, Stratus completed the purchase of Canyon-Johnson Urban Fund II, L.P.'s (Canyon-
Johnson) approximate 58 percent interest in the CJUF II Stratus Block 21, LLC joint venture (the Block 21 Joint 
Venture), which owns a 36-story mixed-use development in downtown Austin, Texas, anchored by the W Austin 
Hotel & Residences (the W Austin Hotel & Residences), for $62.0 million. Stratus’ purchase of Canyon-Johnson’s 
interest was based on a total project gross price of approximately $210 million, before considering approximately 
$22.8 million of cash and cash equivalents held by the Block 21 Joint Venture and acquired by Stratus in its 
purchase of Canyon-Johnson’s interest.

The Block 21 Joint Venture, which was previously a VIE consolidated by Stratus, is now a wholly owned 
consolidated subsidiary of Stratus. The change in ownership was reflected in stockholder's equity on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet, primarily as a reduction in noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and capital in 
excess of par value, and an increase in deferred tax assets.

Stratus funded its acquisition of Canyon-Johnson’s interest in the Block 21 Joint Venture with (1) $32.3 million from 
its non-recourse term loan with Bank of America, (2) a $20.0 million term loan under Stratus’ credit facility with 
Comerica Bank and (3) $9.7 million in cash.

Prior to Stratus' purchase of Canyon-Johnson's interest on September 28, 2015, cumulative capital contributions 
totaled $71.9 million for Stratus and $94.0 million for Canyon-Johnson, and the inception-to-date distributions 
totaled $53.4 million to Stratus and $62.6 million to Canyon-Johnson. 

On October 3, 2012, the Block 21 Joint Venture and Pedernales Entertainment LLC (Pedernales) formed Stageside 
Productions (Stageside) to promote, market and commercialize the production, sale, distribution and general 
oversight of audio and video recordings of events or performances occurring at Austin City Limits Live at the Moody 
Theater (ACL Live). The Block 21 Joint Venture's initial capital contributions to Stageside totaled $0.3 million, and 
Stratus' wholly owned Block 21 subsidiary will contribute additional capital as necessary to fund the working capital 
needs of Stageside. In conjunction with the purchase of Canyon-Johnson's interest in the Block 21 Joint Venture, 
Stratus acquired Canyon-Johnson's interest in Stageside effective September 28, 2015. Stratus has a 100 percent 
capital funding interest and a 40 percent residual and voting interest in Stageside. Stratus performed an evaluation 
and concluded Stageside is a VIE and that Stratus is the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the results of Stageside 
are consolidated in Stratus' financial statements.
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NOTE 3. JOINT VENTURE WITH LCHM HOLDINGS, LLC 
Stratus had a joint venture (the Parkside Village Joint Venture) with LCHM Holdings, LLC (LCHM Holdings). Stratus’ 
capital contributions to the Parkside Village Joint Venture totaled $3.1 million, which consisted of a 23.03 acre tract 
of land located in Austin, Texas, the related property and development agreements for the land and other project 
costs incurred by Stratus before February 28, 2011. On July 2, 2015, Stratus completed the sale of Parkside Village 
and recognized a pre-tax gain of $13.5 million. 

NOTE 4. REAL ESTATE, NET
Stratus' consolidated balance sheets include the following net real estate assets (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2017 2016
Real estate held for sale:    

Developed lots, townhomes and condominium units $ 22,612 $ 21,236

Real estate under development:    
Acreage, multi-family units, commercial square footage and townhomes 118,484  111,373

Land available for development:    
Undeveloped acreage 14,804  19,153

Real estate held for investment:    
Barton Creek Village 5,075

 
6,092

The Oaks at Lakeway — 54,839
Santal Phase I 38,023 37,848
West Killeen Market 8,818 —
W Austin Hotel & Residences

Hotel 111,808 111,479
Entertainment venue 42,687 42,382
Office and retail 19,515 19,700

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,290 1,223
Total 227,216 273,563

Accumulated depreciation (38,826) (33,844)
Total real estate held for investment, net 188,390 239,719

Total real estate, net $ 344,290  $ 391,481

Real estate held for sale. Developed lots, Amarra Villas townhomes and condominium units include individual 
tracts of land that have been developed and permitted for residential use, developed lots with homes already built 
on them or condominium units at the W Austin Hotel & Residences. As of December 31, 2017, Stratus owned 50 
developed units, 2 condominium units at the W Austin Hotel & Residences and 4 townhomes in Amarra Villas.

Real estate under development. Acreage under development includes real estate for which infrastructure work 
over the entire property has been completed, is currently being completed or is able to be completed and for which 
necessary permits have been obtained. Real estate under development also includes the second phase of the 
Santal multi-family project, Lantana Place, Jones Crossing in College Station, Texas, Amarra Villas townhomes 
under construction and planned, and homes under construction or planned on four lots in Amarra Drive Phase III.

Land available for development. Undeveloped acreage includes real estate that can be sold “as is” (i.e., planning, 
infrastructure or development work is not currently in progress on such property). Stratus’ undeveloped acreage as 
of December 31, 2017, included land primarily in Austin, Texas, permitted for residential and commercial 
development.

Real estate held for investment. The first phase of Barton Creek Village includes a 22,366-square-foot retail 
complex, which was 100 percent leased at December 31, 2017. In February 2017, Stratus completed the sale of 
The Oaks at Lakeway for $114.0 million (see Note 11 for further discussion). The Santal Phase I multi-family project 
is a garden-style apartment complex consisting of 236 units. Construction was completed in August 2016, and 
approximately 95 percent of the 236 units were leased at December 31, 2017. The West Killeen Market project 
includes 44,000 square feet of commercial space and three pad sites adjacent to a 90,000 square-foot HEB grocery 
store. Construction began in August 2016 and was completed in June 2017, and the HEB store opened in April 
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2017. As of December 31, 2017, leases for approximately 60 percent of the space at West Killeen Market have 
been executed and leasing activities for the remaining space continues.

The W Austin Hotel & Residences includes a 251-room hotel, 38,316 square feet of leasable office space, including 
9,000 square feet occupied by Stratus' corporate office, and 18,327 square feet of retail space, including the 3TEN 
ACL Live venue, which opened in March 2016 and has a capacity of approximately 350 people. As of December 31, 
2017, both the office and retail space were substantially fully occupied. The W Austin Hotel & Residences also 
includes entertainment space, occupied by ACL Live, an entertainment venue and production studio with a 
maximum capacity of 3,000 people. 

Capitalized interest. Stratus recorded capitalized interest of $5.9 million in 2017, $6.3 million in 2016 and $5.5 
million in 2015. 

NOTE 5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value accounting guidance includes a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The carrying value for certain Stratus financial instruments (i.e., cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities) approximates fair value because of their short-term nature and generally 
negligible credit losses. 

A summary of the carrying amount and fair value of Stratus' other financial instruments follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying

Value
Fair

Value
Carrying

Value
Fair

Value
Liabilities:

Debt $ 221,470 $ 224,632 $ 291,102 $ 293,620
Interest rate swap agreement 134 134 427 427

Debt. Stratus' debt is recorded at cost and is not actively traded. Fair value is estimated based on discounted future 
expected cash flows at estimated current market interest rates. Accordingly, Stratus' debt is classified within Level 2 
of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of debt does not represent the amounts that will ultimately be paid upon 
the maturities of the loans.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement. On December 13, 2013, the Parkside Village Joint Venture entered into a 10-year 
interest rate swap agreement with Comerica Bank that Stratus had designated as a cash flow hedge with changes 
in fair value of the instrument recorded in other comprehensive income (loss). The instrument effectively converted 
the variable rate portion of the Parkside Village Joint Venture's loan from Comerica Bank (the Parkside Village loan) 
from the one-month London Inter-bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to a fixed rate of 2.3 percent. In connection with the 
sale of the Parkside Village property on July 2, 2015, Stratus fully repaid the amount outstanding under the 
Parkside Village loan. Stratus assumed the interest rate swap agreement and, as a result, the instrument no longer 
qualifies for hedge accounting. Accordingly, the accumulated other comprehensive loss balance of $0.6 million on 
July 2, 2015, was reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a loss on interest rate derivative 
instruments, and changes in the fair value of the instrument are being recorded in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. The Consolidated Statements of Operations include gains on interest rate derivative instruments of 
$0.3 million in 2017 and $0.2 million in 2016. Stratus also evaluated the counterparty credit risk associated with the 
interest rate swap agreement, which is considered a Level 3 input, but did not consider such risk to be significant. 
Therefore, the interest rate swap agreement is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 
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NOTE 6. DEBT
Stratus' debt follows (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2017 2016
Goldman Sachs loan,
    average interest rate of 5.58% in 2017 and 2016 $ 145,195 $ 147,025
Lakeway Construction loan,   

average interest rate of 3.24% in 2016 — 57,912
Comerica Bank credit facility,   

average interest rate of 5.96% in 2017 and 6.00% in 2016 25,765 46,547
Santal Phase I construction loan,

average interest rate of 3.74% in 2017 and 2.98% in 2016 31,864 30,286
Barton Creek Village term loan,   

average interest rate of 4.19% in 2017 and 2016 3,375 5,555
Amarra Villas credit facility,
  average interest rate of 4.12% in 2017 and 3.54% in 2016 5,247 3,777
West Killeen Market construction loan,

average interest rate of 3.89% in 2017 5,378 —
Jones Crossing construction loan

average interest rate of 4.56% in 2017 4,646 —
Total debta $ 221,470 $ 291,102

a.  Includes net reductions for unamortized debt issuance costs of $2.1 million at December 31, 2017, and $2.2 million at 
December 31, 2016. Debt issuance costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the related debt, 
which approximates the effective interest method, to interest expense.

Goldman Sachs loan.  On January 5, 2016, Stratus completed the refinancing of the W Austin Hotel & 
Residences. Goldman Sachs Mortgage Company provided a $150.0 million, ten-year, non-recourse term loan (the 
Goldman Sachs loan) with a fixed interest rate of 5.58 percent per annum and payable monthly based on a 30-year 
amortization. Stratus used the proceeds from the Goldman Sachs loan to fully repay its existing obligations under 
Stratus' term loan with Bank of America, N.A. (the BoA loan) and the $20.0 million Comerica Bank term loan 
included as part of the Comerica Bank credit facility. In connection with prepayment of the BoA loan, Stratus 
recorded a loss on early extinguishment of debt totaling $0.8 million in 2016. 

The obligations of Stratus Block 21, LLC (Block 21), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Stratus and borrower under the 
Goldman Sachs loan, are secured by all assets owned from time to time by Block 21. Additionally, certain 
obligations of Block 21 under the Goldman Sachs loan are guaranteed by Stratus, including environmental 
indemnification and other customary carve-out obligations. In connection with any acceleration of the Goldman 
Sachs loan, Block 21 must pay a yield maintenance premium in the amount of at least three percent of the amount 
of indebtedness prepaid. Prepayment of the Goldman Sachs loan is not permitted except for certain prepayments 
resulting from casualty or condemnation and in whole within 90 days of the maturity date. 

Lakeway Construction loan. On September 29, 2014, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a $62.9 million 
construction loan agreement with PlainsCapital Bank (the Lakeway Construction loan) to fund the construction, 
development and leasing of The Oaks at Lakeway in Lakeway, Texas. In February 2017, Stratus repaid the 
Lakeway Construction loan with proceeds from the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway (see Note 11). 

Comerica Bank credit facility.  Stratus' borrowing capacity under the Comerica credit facility is $52.5 million, 
comprised of a $45.0 million revolving line of credit and a $7.5 million tranche for letters of credit. Prior to November 
7, 2017, the interest rate applicable to amounts borrowed under the Comerica credit facility was LIBOR plus 4.0 
percent, with a minimum interest rate of 6.0 percent. As of November 2017, the interest rate applicable to amounts 
borrowed under each tranche is equal to an annual rate of LIBOR plus 4.0 percent, with no minimum. In August 
2017, Stratus extended the maturity date of this credit facility from August 31, 2017, to November 30, 2017, and in 
November 2017, further extended the maturity date by one year to November 30, 2018. Stratus is continuing to 
negotiate a modification and a longer-term extension of the credit facility with Comerica Bank. The Comerica Bank 
credit facility is secured by substantially all of Stratus' assets except for properties that are encumbered by separate 
debt financing. The Comerica Bank credit facility contains customary financial covenants including a requirement 
that Stratus maintain a minimum total stockholders' equity balance of $110.0 million and a requirement that Stratus 
obtain Comerica's prior written consent for any common stock repurchases or dividend payments. Additionally, the 
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Comerica Bank credit facility is cross-collateralized with Stratus' $59.2 million construction loan agreement with 
Comerica Bank (the Santal construction loans) to fund the development and construction of a multi-family 
development in Section N of Barton Creek, and with an $8.0 million stand-alone revolving credit facility with 
Comerica Bank (the Amarra Villas credit facility), the proceeds of which will be used for the construction of single 
family townhomes and related improvements at the Amarra Villas.

As of December 31, 2017, Stratus had $25.8 million outstanding under the $45.0 million revolving line of credit. 
 
Santal Construction loans.  On January 8, 2015, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a $34.1 million construction 
loan with Comerica Bank (Santal Phase I Loan) to fund the development and construction of Santal Phase I, a 236-
unit, garden-style, multi-family development in Section N of Barton Creek, which was completed in August 2016. On 
September 11, 2017, the same Stratus subsidiary entered into an amended and restated construction loan 
agreement with Comerica Bank to increase the original commitment to $59.2 million, which includes $32.8 million 
for the Santal Phase I Loan and $26.4 million to finance the construction of Santal Phase II, a 212-unit garden style, 
multi-family, development located adjacent to Santal Phase I (Santal Phase II loan). Both the Santal Phase I and the 
Santal Phase II loans have a maturity date of September 11, 2020. As of December 31, 2017, a total of $31.9 million 
was drawn on the Santal Phase I loan and no amounts were drawn on the Santal Phase II loan. The interest rate 
applicable to the Santal Phase I loan is LIBOR plus 2.5 percent. The interest rate applicable to the Santal Phase II 
loan is LIBOR plus 3.0 percent. Payments of interest on each loan are due and payable monthly, through 
September 11, 2020. Outstanding amounts will be secured by Santal Phase I and Phase II and all subsequent 
improvements, including all leases and rents associated with the developments as well as related permits and other 
entitlements. The construction loan agreements and related documents contain affirmative and negative covenants 
usual and customary for loan agreements of this nature. Santal may extend the maturity of each loan for up to two 
additional 12-month periods subject to satisfaction of certain conditions, including a debt service coverage ratio of at 
least 1.10 to 1.00 on the date immediately preceding the commencement of the first extension period and 1.20 to 
1.00 on the date immediately preceding the commencement of the second extension period. The Santal Phase I 
and Phase II loans contain customary financial covenants including a requirement that Stratus maintain a minimum 
total stockholders' equity balance of $110.0 million.

Barton Creek Village term loan. On June 27, 2014, Stratus entered into a $6.0 million term loan agreement with 
PlainsCapital Bank (the Barton Creek Village term loan), that matures on June 27, 2024. The interest rate is fixed at 
4.19 percent and payments of principal and interest are due monthly. The Barton Creek Village term loan is secured 
by assets at Stratus' Barton Creek Village project, which had an aggregate net book value of $3.5 million at 
December 31, 2017. In February 2017, in connection with the sale of a portion of the property, Stratus prepaid $2.1 
million of this loan.

Amarra Villas credit facility.  On July 12, 2016, a Stratus subsidiary entered into the Amarra Villas credit facility. 
The Amarra Villas credit facility matures on July 12, 2019, and is secured by assets at Stratus’ 20-unit Villas at 
Amarra Drive townhome project (the Amarra Villas), which had a net book value of $10.9 million at December 31, 
2017. Interest on the loan is variable at LIBOR plus 3.0 percent. The Amarra Villas credit facility is guaranteed by 
Stratus and contains financial covenants including a requirement that Stratus maintain a minimum total 
stockholders' equity balance of $110.0 million. Principal paydowns will be made as townhomes sell, and additional 
amounts will be borrowed as additional townhomes are constructed. 

West Killeen Market Construction loan.  On August 5, 2016, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a $9.9 million 
construction loan agreement with Southside Bank (the West Killeen Market loan) for the construction of the West 
Killeen Market project. Interest on the loan is variable at one-month LIBOR plus 2.75 percent, with a minimum 
interest rate of 3.0 percent. Payments of interest only will be made monthly during the initial 42 months of the 72-
month term, followed by 30 months of monthly principal and interest payments based on a 30-year amortization. 
Borrowings on the West Killeen Market loan are secured by assets at Stratus’ West Killeen Market retail project in 
Killeen, Texas, which had a net book value of $10.7 million at December 31, 2017, and are guaranteed by Stratus 
until construction is completed and certain customary debt service coverage ratios are met. The West Killeen 
Market loan contains customary financial covenants including a requirement that Stratus maintain a minimum total 
stockholders' equity balance of $110.0 million.

Lantana Place Construction loan. On April 28, 2017, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a $26.3 million construction 
loan with Southside Bank (the Lantana Place loan) to finance the initial phase of Lantana Place, a 320,000-square-
foot, mixed-use development project in southwest Austin, Texas. Construction of the first phase of Lantana Place 
began in June 2017. No amounts were drawn on the Lantana Place loan as of December 31, 2017. Interest is 
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variable at one-month LIBOR plus 2.75 percent, subject to a minimum interest rate of 3.0 percent. Payments of 
interest only will be due and payable monthly, through November 1, 2020. The principal balance outstanding after 
November 1, 2020, will be payable in equal monthly installments of principal and interest based on a 30-year 
amortization. Outstanding amounts must be repaid in full on or before April 28, 2023, and can be prepaid without 
penalty. Outstanding amounts will be secured by the Lantana Place project and all subsequent improvements, 
including all leases and rents associated with the development. The agreement contains affirmative and negative 
covenants usual and customary for loan agreements of this nature, including but not limited to, a financial covenant 
to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.35 to 1.00 at all times beginning on December 31, 2019. 
Stratus will guarantee outstanding amounts under the loan until the development is able to maintain a debt service 
ratio of 1.50 to 1.00 for a period of six consecutive months. 

Jones Crossing Construction loan. On September 1, 2017, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a $36.8 million 
construction loan with Southside Bank (the Jones Crossing loan) to finance construction of Phases 1 and 2, the 
retail component, of Stratus' Jones Crossing project, a new HEB-anchored, mixed use development in College 
Station, Texas. Construction of the initial two phases of the Jones Crossing project began in September 2017, and 
the HEB grocery store is expected to open in mid-2018. As of December 31, 2017, $5.1 million was drawn on the 
Jones Crossing loan. Interest is variable at one-month LIBOR plus 3.75 percent, subject to a minimum interest rate 
of 4.0 percent. Payments of interest are due and payable monthly through March 1, 2021. The principal balance of 
the loan outstanding after March 1, 2021, will be payable in equal monthly installments of principal and interest 
based on a 30-year amortization. Outstanding amounts must be repaid in full on or before September 1, 2023. The 
loan is secured by the Jones Crossing project and all subsequent improvements, including all leases and rents 
associated with the development as well as related permits and other entitlements. The loan agreement and related 
documents contain affirmative and negative covenants usual and customary for loan agreements of this nature, 
including, but not limited to, a financial covenant to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.35 to 1.00 at 
all times beginning on March 31, 2020. Outstanding amounts under the loan are guaranteed by Stratus until Phases 
1 and 2 of the Jones Crossing development are completed and the development is able to maintain a debt service 
ratio of 1.50 to 1.00 as of the end of each fiscal quarter. 

Maturities. The following table summarizes Stratus' debt maturities based on the principal amounts outstanding as 
of December 31, 2017 (in thousands): 

 2018  2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter Total
Goldman Sachs loan $ 2,086 $ 2,207 $ 2,313 $ 2,470 $ 2,613 $ 134,636 $ 146,325
Santal Phase I loana — — 32,133 — — — 32,133
Comerica Bank credit facility 25,765 — — — — — 25,765
Amarra Villas credit facility — 5,342 — — — — 5,342
West Killeen Market
construction loan — — — — 5,544 — 5,544

Barton Creek Village term loan 100  105 109 114 119 2,877 3,424
Jones Crossing loan — — — — — 5,066 5,066
Total $ 27,951  $ 7,654 $ 34,555 $ 2,584 $ 8,276 $ 142,579 $ 223,599

a. Stratus has the option to extend the maturity date for two additional twelve-month periods, subject to certain debt service 
coverage conditions.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES
Stratus’ (provision for) benefit from income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Current $ (7,998) $ 806 $ (3,458)
Deferred (5,906) 1,973 (2,118)

(Provision for) benefit from income taxes $ (13,904) $ 2,779 $ (5,576)

Excess tax benefits related to option exercises and vesting of RSUs are required to be recognized as an income tax 
benefit and expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. During 2017, Stratus realized tax benefits of 
$0.2 million related to excess tax benefits on stock option exercises and RSUs vested. 
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The components of deferred income taxes follow (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets and liabilities:   

Real estate, commercial leasing assets and facilities $ 10,179 $ 13,995
Alternative minimum tax credits (no expiration) — 1,169
Employee benefit accruals 464 563
Accrued liabilities 53 80
Deferred income 81 5
Charitable contribution carryforward — 185
Other assets 711 496
Net operating loss credit carryforwards 5 1,225
Other liabilities (32) (495)

Deferred tax assets, net $ 11,461 $ 17,223

Stratus’ future results of operations may be negatively impacted by an inability to realize a tax benefit for future tax 
losses or for items that will generate additional deferred tax assets. The realization of the deferred tax assets 
recorded as of December 31, 2017, is primarily dependent upon Stratus' ability to generate future taxable income. 

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to Stratus' effective income tax rate for the years ended 
December 31 follows (dollars in thousands): 

 Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
 Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Income tax (expense) benefit computed at the     

federal statutory income tax rate $ (6,220) (35)% $ 3,072 (35)% $ (6,983) (35)%
Adjustments attributable to:   

Noncontrolling interests (2) — — — 1,896 9
Change in statutory rate (7,580) (42) — — — —
State taxes and other, net (102) (1) (293) 3 (489) (2)

(Provision for) benefit from income taxes $ (13,904) (78) $ 2,779 (32) $ (5,576) (28)

Stratus paid federal income taxes and state margin taxes totaling $6.9 million in 2017, $1.7 million in 2016 and $2.0 
million in 2015. Stratus received income tax refunds of $2.3 million in 2017, and less than $0.1 million in each of 
2016 and 2015. 

Uncertain Tax Positions.  During the three years ended December 31, 2017, Stratus recorded unrecognized tax 
benefits related to state margin tax filing positions. A summary of the changes in unrecognized tax benefits follows 
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016 2015

Balance at January 1 $ 773 $ 1,105 $ 1,160
Subtractions for tax positions related to prior years (266) (332) (55)
Balance at December 31 $ 507 $ 773 $ 1,105

As of December 31, 2017, Stratus had $0.5 million of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect its 
annual effective tax rate. During 2018, approximately $0.3 million of unrecognized tax benefits could be recognized 
as a result of the expiration of statutes of limitations.  

Stratus records liabilities offsetting the tax provision benefits of uncertain tax positions to the extent it estimates that 
a tax position is more likely than not to not be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. Stratus has 
elected to classify any interest and penalties related to income taxes within income tax expense in its 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2017, less than $0.1 million of interest costs have 
been accrued.
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Stratus files both U.S. federal income tax and state margin tax returns. With limited exceptions, Stratus is no longer 
subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years prior to 2014, and state margin tax 
examinations for the years prior to 2013.

Tax Reform.  The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the Act) enacted on December 22, 2017, includes significant changes to 
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). The Act reduces the corporate income tax rate to 
21 percent, eliminates the corporate alternative minimum tax, allows for immediate expensing of capital 
investments, and limits deductions of interest expense and executive compensation. While the Act is generally 
applicable for years after December 31, 2017, existing U.S. GAAP requires the effects of changes in tax rates and 
laws on deferred tax balances to be recognized in the period in which the legislation is enacted. 

Due to the significant and complex changes to the Code from the the Act, the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) issued staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, “Income Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts 
and Jobs Act,” (SAB 118). SAB 118 provides a measurement period for up to one year for adjustments to be made 
to account for the effects of the Act. Stratus reflected the income tax effects of those aspects of the Act for which the 
accounting is complete. To the extent Stratus' accounting for certain income tax effects of the Act is incomplete but 
Stratus is able to determine a reasonable estimate, Stratus has recorded a provisional estimate in the financial 
statements. 

The primary impact of the Act on Stratus relates to the re-measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities 
resulting from the change in the U.S. corporate tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent. In fourth-quarter 2017, 
Stratus recognized the change in the federal statutory rate and recorded a tax provision of approximately $7.6 
million to reflect the impact on its deferred tax assets.

NOTE 8. EQUITY TRANSACTIONS, STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Equity
Dividends.  Stratus' Comerica Bank credit facility requires the bank's prior written consent to pay a dividend on 
Stratus' common stock. On March 15, 2017, the Board of Directors (the Board), after receiving written consent from 
Comerica Bank, declared a special cash dividend of $1.00 per share ($8.1 million), which was paid on April 18, 
2017, to stockholders of record on March 31, 2017. The special cash dividend was declared after the Board’s 
consideration of the results of the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway. Comerica Bank’s consent to the payment of this 
special dividend is not indicative of the bank’s willingness to consent to the payment of future dividends. The 
declaration of future dividends is at the discretion of the Board, subject to the restrictions under Stratus' Comerica 
Bank credit facility, and will depend on Stratus' financial results, cash requirements, projected compliance with 
covenants in its debt agreements, outlook and other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

Share Purchase Program.  In November 2013, Stratus' Board approved an increase in the open market share 
purchase program from 0.7 million shares to 1.7 million shares of Stratus common stock. The purchases may occur 
over time depending on many factors, including the market price of Stratus common stock; Stratus’ operating 
results, cash flow and financial position; and general economic and market conditions. There were no purchases 
under this program during 2017, 2016 or 2015. As of December 31, 2017, 991,695 shares remain available under 
this program.

Stock-based Compensation
Stock Award Plans.  Stratus currently has four stock-based compensation plans, all of which have awards 
available for grant. In 2017, Stratus' stockholders approved the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for the 
issuance of stock-based compensation awards, including stock options and RSUs, relating to 180,000 shares of 
Stratus common stock that are issuable to Stratus employees and non-employee directors. Stratus’ 2010 and 2013 
Stock Incentive Plans provide for the issuance of stock-based compensation awards, including stock options and 
RSUs, relating to 140,000 shares and 180,000 shares, respectively, of Stratus common stock that are issuable to 
Stratus employees and non-employee directors. Stratus' 1996 Stock Option plan for Non-Employee Directors 
provides for the issuance of stock options only. Stratus common stock issued upon option exercises or RSU 
vestings represents newly issued shares of common stock. Awards with respect to 180,000 shares under the 2017 
Stock Incentive Plan, 25,800 shares under the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, 4,375 shares under the 2010 Stock 
Incentive Plan and 2,500 shares under the 1996 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors were available for 
new grants as of December 31, 2017.
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Stock-Based Compensation Costs.  Compensation costs charged against earnings for RSUs, the only awards 
granted over the last several years, totaled $791 thousand for 2017, $719 thousand for 2016 and $528 thousand for 
2015. Stock-based compensation costs are capitalized when appropriate. Stratus does not currently apply a 
forfeiture rate when estimating stock-based compensation costs for RSUs. 

RSUs.  RSUs granted under the plans provide for the issuance of common stock to non-employee directors and 
certain officers of Stratus at no cost to the directors and officers. The RSUs are converted into shares of Stratus 
common stock ratably and generally vest in one-quarter increments over the four years following the grant date. For 
officers, the awards will fully vest upon retirement, death and disability, and upon a change of control. For directors, 
the awards will fully vest upon a change of control and there will be a partial acceleration of vesting due to 
retirement, death and disability.

During 2016, Stratus' executive officers were granted performance-based RSUs with a three-year performance 
period. The final number of shares to be issued to the executive officers will be determined based on achievement 
of certain performance targets. The total grant date target shares related to the performance-based RSU grants 
was 21,000, of which the executive officers can earn from 0 percent to 100 percent.

A summary of outstanding unvested RSUs, including performance-based RSUs, as of December 31, 2017, and 
activity during the year ended December 31, 2017, is presented below:

Number of
RSUs

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
($000)

Balance at January 1 111,750
Granted 27,200
Vested (39,750)

Balance at December 31 99,200 $ 2,004

The total fair value of RSUs granted was $0.7 million during 2017, $1.0 million during 2016 and $0.6 million during 
2015. The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested was $0.6 million during 2017, $1.0 million during 2016 and $0.6 
million during 2015. As of December 31, 2017, Stratus had $1.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost 
related to unvested RSUs expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.2 years.

Stock Options.  Stock options granted under the plans generally expire 10 years after the date of grant and vest in 
25 percent annual increments beginning one year from the date of grant. The plans and award agreements provide 
that participants will receive the following year’s vesting after retirement and provide for accelerated vesting if there 
is a change of control (as defined in the plans). Stratus has not granted stock options since 2011. A summary of 
stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2017, and changes during the year ended December 31, 2017, 
follows: 

Number of
Options

Weighted
Average

Option Price

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Term (years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
($000)

Balance at January 1 25,000 $ 17.40
Exercised (7,500) 8.37
Expired (5,000) 32.85

Balance at December 31 12,500 16.64 1.9 $ 163
Vested and exercisable at December 31 12,500 16.64 1.9 $ 163

The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2017 totaled $142 thousand. There were no stock option exercises 
during 2016 or 2015. In addition, no stock options vested during 2017, 2016 or 2015.
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The following table includes amounts related to vesting of RSUs and exercises of stock options (in thousands, 
except shares of Stratus common stock tendered): 

Years Ended December 31,
 2017 2016 2015
Stratus shares tendered to pay the exercise   

price and/or the minimum required taxesa 11,888 12,591 11,562
Cash received from stock option exercises $ 63 $ — $ —
Amounts Stratus paid for employee taxes $ 297 $ 290 $ 153

a. Under terms of the related plans and agreements, upon vesting of RSUs and exercise of stock options, employees may 
tender shares of Stratus common stock to Stratus to pay the exercise price and/or the minimum required taxes.

Employee Benefits
Stratus maintains 401(k) defined contribution plans subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The 401(k) plans provide for an employer matching contribution equal to 100 percent 
of the participant’s contribution, subject to a limit of 5 percent of the participant’s annual salary. Stratus’ policy is to 
make an additional safe harbor contribution equal to 3 percent of each participant’s total compensation. The 401(k) 
plans also provide for discretionary contributions. Stratus’ contributions to the 401(k) plans totaled $0.5 million in 
both 2017 and 2016, and $0.4 million in 2015.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
Construction Contracts.  Stratus had commitments under noncancelable construction contracts totaling $47.5 
million at December 31, 2017. These commitments primarily included contracts for construction of Santal Phase II, 
Jones Crossing and Lantana Place.

Letters of Credit.  As of December 31, 2017, Stratus had letters of credit committed totaling $4.1 million under its 
credit facility with Comerica Bank (see Note 6).

Jones Crossing Ground Lease.  In September 2017, a Stratus subsidiary entered into a 99-year ground lease for 
approximately 72 acres of land in College Station, Texas. Stratus began construction of the Jones Crossing Project 
in September 2017. The annual contractual payments under this noncancelable long-term operating lease total $0.2 
million for each of 2018 and 2019, $0.3 million for 2020, $0.4 million for each of 2021 and 2022, and $111.0 million 
thereafter.

Rental Income.  As of December 31, 2017, Stratus’ minimum rental income, including scheduled rent increases 
under noncancelable long-term leases which extend through 2027, totaled $2.3 million in 2018, $1.7 million in 2019, 
$1.7 million in 2020, $1.7 million in 2021, $1.4 million in 2022, and $2.4 million thereafter.

Other Operating Leases.  As of December 31, 2017, Stratus’ minimum annual contractual payments under its 
noncancelable long-term operating leases excluding the Jones Crossing ground lease discussed above, totaled 
$0.2 million for both 2018 and 2019 and $0.1 million for 2020 and less than $0.1 million for 2021. Total expense 
under Stratus’ operating leases totaled $0.1 million for each of 2017, 2016 and 2015.

Circle C Settlement.  On August 1, 2002, the city of Austin (the City) granted final approval of a development 
agreement (the Circle C settlement) and permanent zoning for Stratus’ real estate located within the Circle C 
community in southwest Austin. The Circle C settlement firmly established all essential municipal development 
regulations applicable to Stratus’ Circle C properties until 2032. The City also provided Stratus $15.0 million of 
development fee credits, which are in the form of credit bank capacity, in connection with its future development of 
its Circle C and other Austin-area properties for waivers of fees and reimbursement for certain infrastructure costs. 
In addition, Stratus can elect to sell up to $1.5 million of the incentives per year to other developers for their use in 
paying City fees related to their projects as long as the projects are within the desired development zone, as 
defined within the Circle C settlement. To the extent Stratus sells the incentives to other developers, Stratus 
recognizes the income from the sale when title is transferred and compensation is received. As of December 31, 
2017, Stratus had permanently used $12.7 million of its City-based development fee credits, including cumulative 
amounts sold to third parties totaling $5.1 million. Fee credits used for the development of Stratus’ properties 
effectively reduce the basis of the related properties and defer recognition of any gain associated with the use of the 
fees until the affected properties are sold. Stratus also had $0.5 million in credit bank capacity in use as temporary 
fiscal deposits as of December 31, 2017. Available credit bank capacity was $2.6 million at December 31, 2017.
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Environmental Regulations.  Stratus has made, and will continue to make, expenditures for protection of the 
environment. Increasing emphasis on environmental matters can be expected to result in additional costs, which 
will be charged against Stratus’ operations in future periods. Present and future environmental laws and regulations 
applicable to Stratus’ operations may require substantial capital expenditures that could adversely affect the 
development of its real estate interests or may affect its operations in other ways that cannot be accurately 
predicted at this time.

Litigation.  Stratus may from time to time be involved in various legal proceedings of a character normally incident 
to the ordinary course of its business. Stratus believes that potential liability from any of these pending or 
threatened proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on Stratus’ financial condition or results of 
operations.

NOTE 10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Stratus currently has four operating segments: Real Estate Operations, Leasing Operations, Hotel and 
Entertainment. 

The Real Estate Operations segment is comprised of Stratus’ real estate assets (developed, under development 
and available for development), which consists of its properties in Austin, Texas (the Barton Creek community, 
including Santal Phase II, the Circle C community, Lantana Place and the condominium units at the W Austin Hotel 
& Residences); in Lakeway, Texas, located in the greater Austin area (Lakeway); in College Station, Texas (Jones 
Crossing); and in Magnolia, Texas, located in the greater Houston area (Magnolia).

The Leasing Operations segment includes the office and retail space at the W Austin Hotel & Residences, a retail 
building in Barton Creek Village, Santal Phase I and the West Killeen Market in Killeen, Texas.

The Hotel segment includes the W Austin Hotel located at the W Austin Hotel & Residences in downtown Austin, 
Texas.

The Entertainment segment includes ACL Live, a live music and entertainment venue and production studio at the 
W Austin Hotel & Residences. In addition to hosting concerts and private events, this venue is the home of Austin 
City Limits, a television program showcasing popular music legends. The Entertainment segment also includes 
revenues and costs associated with events hosted at other venues, including 3TEN ACL Live, which opened in 
March 2016 on the site of the W Austin Hotel & Residences, and the results of the Stageside Productions joint 
venture with Pedernales Entertainment LLC (see Note 2). 

Stratus uses operating income or loss to measure the performance of each segment. Stratus' general and 
administrative expenses, which primarily consist of employee salaries, wages and other costs, are managed on a 
consolidated basis and are not allocated to Stratus' operating segments. The following segment information reflects 
management determinations that may not be indicative of what the actual financial performance of each segment 
would be if it were an independent entity. The following segment information was prepared on the same basis as 
Stratus’ consolidated financial statements (in thousands).

Real Estate
Operationsa

Leasing
Operations Hotel Entertainment

Eliminations 
and Otherb Total

Year Ended December 31, 2017:       
Revenues:
  Unaffiliated customers $ 11,001 $ 7,981 $ 38,360 $ 22,998 $ —  $ 80,340
  Intersegment 143 875 321 234 (1,573) —
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 10,377 4,829 28,584 17,719 (735) 60,774
Depreciation 232 2,693 3,544 1,523 (139)  7,853
General and administrative expenses — — — — 11,401  11,401
Profit participation — 2,538 — — — 2,538
Loss (gain) on sales of assets 13 (25,421)

c
— (55) — (25,463)

Operating income (loss) $ 522 $ 24,217 $ 6,553 $ 4,045 $ (12,100) $ 23,237
Capital expendituresd $ 14,395 $ 33,290 $ 506 $ 283 $ — $ 48,474
Total assets at December 31, 2017 189,832 71,851 102,491 35,446 6,373 405,993
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Real Estate
Operationsa

Leasing
Operations Hotel Entertainment

Eliminations 
and Otherb Total

Year Ended December 31, 2016:       
Revenues:
  Unaffiliated customers $ 10,719 $ 9,682 $ 40,418 $ 19,522 $ —  $ 80,341
  Intersegment 31 767 309 183 (1,290) —
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 9,702 4,936 29,248 15,698 (666) 58,918
Depreciation 224 3,144 3,421 1,461 (168) 8,082
General and administrative expenses — — — — 12,164 12,164
Operating income (loss) $ 824 $ 2,369 $ 8,058 $ 2,546 $ (12,620) $ 1,177
Capital expendituresd $ 14,575 $ 26,782 $ 1,216 $ 217 $ — $ 42,790
Total assets at December 31, 2016 176,163 120,394 104,087 37,692 13,839 452,175

Year Ended December 31, 2015:e       
Revenues:
  Unaffiliated customers $ 14,277 $ 5,641 $ 41,346 $ 19,607 $ —  $ 80,871
  Intersegment 66 538 305 193 (1,102) —
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 10,426 2,838 30,789 15,426 (411) 59,068
Depreciation 246 1,556 5,797 1,288 (144) 8,743
General and administrative expenses — — — — 8,057 8,057
Gain on sales of assets — (20,729)

f
— — — (20,729)

Operating income (loss) $ 3,671 $ 22,514 $ 5,065 $ 3,086 $ (8,604) $ 25,732
Income from discontinued operationsg $ — $ 3,218 $ — $ — $ — $ 3,218
Capital expendituresd 26,237 54,027 1,023 128 — 81,415
Total assets at December 31, 2015 205,735 61,371 109,562 42,125 11,312 430,105

a. Includes sales commissions and other revenues together with related expenses.
b. Includes consolidated general and administrative expenses and eliminations of intersegment amounts.
c. Includes $24.3 million associated with recognition of the majority of the gain on the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway (see Note 

11).
d. Also includes purchases and development of residential real estate held for sale.
e. Includes the results of the Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial properties through July 2, 2015 (see Note 11).
f. Represents gain on sales of Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter. 
g. Represents recognition of a deferred gain, net of taxes, associated with the 2012 sale of 7500 Rialto (see Note 11).

NOTE 11. ASSET SALES AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The Oaks at Lakeway.  On February 15, 2017, Stratus sold The Oaks at Lakeway to FHF I Oaks at Lakeway, LLC 
for $114.0 million in cash. Net cash proceeds were $50.8 million after repayment of the Lakeway Construction loan 
(see Note 6). Stratus used a portion of these net cash proceeds to pay indebtedness outstanding under the 
Comerica Bank credit facility. The parties entered into three master lease agreements at closing: (1) one covering 
unleased in-line retail space, with a 5-year term, (2) one covering four unleased pad sites, three of which have 10-
year terms, and one of which has a 15-year term, and (3) one covering the hotel pad with a 99-year term. As 
specified conditions are met, primarily consisting of the tenant executing a lease, commencing payment of rent and 
taking occupancy, leases will be assigned to the purchaser and the corresponding property will be removed from 
the master lease, reducing Stratus' master lease payment obligations. Stratus' master lease payment obligation, 
which currently approximates $180 thousand per month, is expected to decline over time until leasing is complete 
and all leases are assigned to the purchaser.  

Stratus agreed to guarantee the obligations of its selling subsidiary under the sales agreement, up to a liability cap 
of two percent of the purchase price. This cap does not apply to Stratus' obligation to satisfy the selling subsidiary's 
indemnity obligations for its broker commissions or similar compensation or Stratus' liability in guaranteeing the 
selling subsidiary's obligations under the master leases. To secure its obligations under the master leases, Stratus 
has provided a $1.5 million irrevocable letter of credit with a three-year term.

The gain on sale of $39.7 million was deferred as a result of Stratus’ continuing involvement under the master lease 
agreements with the purchaser. The hotel pad was leased to a hotel operator under a ground lease at the date of 
sale. However, the hotel tenant had not commenced rent payments under the ground lease or construction of its 
building. At the date of the sale, primarily because of the uncertainty related to the hotel tenant’s performance under 
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its ground lease, Stratus' estimated maximum probable exposure to loss using a probability-weighted assessment 
of future lease payments based on the master lease agreements exceeded the gain on sale. The rent payments 
under the master lease agreements represent continuing support obligations and are recorded as a reduction of the 
deferred gain.

The rent payments related to the 99-year hotel pad master lease represent the greatest exposure to loss. In May 
2017, the hotel tenant began paying rent and, in August 2017, obtained construction financing and commenced 
construction of its building. The achievement of these milestones significantly reduced Stratus' probability weighted 
estimated maximum exposure to loss and $24.3 million of the gain was recognized in third-quarter 2017 based on 
the performance of services method. The following table summarizes changes to the deferred gain balance during 
2017 (in thousands):

Balance as of February 15, 2017 $ 39,677
Master lease payments (2,196)
Revisions to costs to complete (1,855)
Gain recognized (24,306)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 11,320

The remaining deferred gain, as reduced by future master lease payments, will be recognized in future periods 
under the performance of services method, when Stratus’ continuing involvement ends or substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer and Stratus' remaining probability weighted estimated 
maximum exposure to loss under the master lease agreements is less than the deferred gain. 

Upon the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, HEB earned a profit participation of $2.5 million (of which $2.2 million was 
paid at closing), which is presented separately in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

FFF Presents LLC.  In October 2017, Stratus sold intangible assets of FFF Presents, LLC, primarily the rights to 
host the Fun Fun Fun Festival. The purchaser paid a base purchase price of $0.3 million. The purchaser will also 
pay Stratus a contingent purchase price based on a portion of festival profit between 2018 and 2022 and a deferred 
purchase price based on a multiple of a portion of average festival profit in 2021 and 2022. Stratus recognized a 
gain on the sale of $0.2 million.

Barton Creek Village.  On February 28, 2017, Stratus completed the sale of its 3,085-square-foot bank building 
and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek Village, for $3.1 million and recorded a gain on 
the sale of $1.1 million. In connection with the sale, a $2.1 million paydown was made on the Barton Creek Village 
term loan and Stratus plans to use the gross sale proceeds on a deferred basis to acquire qualifying replacement 
property.

Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter.  On July 2, 2015, Stratus completed the sales of its Austin-area Parkside 
Village and 5700 Slaughter commercial properties, both located in the Circle C community, to Whitestone REIT. The 
Parkside Village retail project, which was owned in a joint venture with LCHM Holdings, LLC, consisted of 90,184 
leasable square feet and was sold for $32.5 million. The 5700 Slaughter retail project, which was wholly owned by 
Stratus, consisted of 25,698 leasable square feet and was sold for $12.5 million. Stratus used proceeds from these 
transactions to repay the total $26.0 million outstanding under the Parkside Village loan and the United/Slaughter 
term loan, with the remainder being held in escrow while Stratus assessed potential tax free like-kind exchange 
transactions. In September 2015, Stratus used $2.6 million of the escrow funds to purchase an undeveloped tract of 
land for the West Killeen Market project and withdrew $12.1 million to fund distributions to Stratus and LCHM 
Holdings of $9.4 million and $3.2 million, respectively. After debt repayments and closing costs, cash proceeds from 
these transactions approximated $17 million, and Stratus recorded a pre-tax gain in 2015 of $20.7 million, of which 
the noncontrolling interest share was $3.9 million. 

Stratus' net loss attributable to common stockholders associated with Parkside Village and 5700 Slaughter totaled 
$47 thousand for the period January 1, 2015, to July 2, 2015.

7500 Rialto.  In 2012, Stratus sold 7500 Rialto, an office building in Lantana. In connection with the sale, Stratus 
recognized a gain of $5.1 million and deferred a gain of $5.0 million because of a guaranty provided to the lender in 
connection with the buyer's assumption of the loan related to 7500 Rialto. The guaranty was released in January 



61

2015, and Stratus recognized the deferred gain of $5.0 million ($3.2 million to net income attributable to common 
stockholders) in 2015.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Stratus evaluated events after December 31, 2017, and through the date the financial statements were issued, and 
determined any events or transactions occurring during this period that would require recognition or disclosure are 
appropriately addressed in these financial statements. 

NOTE 13.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter Year

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
2017
Revenues $ 20,664 $ 21,429 $ 17,222 $ 21,025 $ 80,340
Operating (loss) income (1,499)

a,b
295 23,640

a
801 23,237

a,b

Net (loss) income (2,670)
c

(885) 14,308 (6,869)
d

3,884
c,d

Net (loss) income attributable to
common stockholders (2,670)

a,b,c
(893) 14,308

a
(6,866)

d
3,879

a,b,c,d

Basic net (loss) income per share share
attributable to common stockholders (0.33)

a,b,c
(0.11) 1.76

a
(0.84)

d
0.48

a,b,c,d

Diluted net (loss) income per share
attributable to common stockholders (0.33)

a,b,c
(0.11) 1.75

a
(0.84)

d
0.47

a,b,c,d

2016
Revenues $ 19,026 $ 19,150 $ 21,180 $ 20,985 $ 80,341
Operating income (loss) 473 (1,362) 425 1,641 1,177
Net loss (1,683)

c
(2,483) (1,659) (174) (5,999)

c

Net loss attributable to common
stockholders (1,683)

c
(2,483) (1,659) (174) (5,999)

c

Basic and diluted net loss per share
attributable to common stockholders (0.21)

c
(0.31) (0.20) (0.02) (0.74)

c

a. Includes gains on sales of assets of $1.1 million ($0.7 million to net loss attributable to common stockholders or $0.09 per 
share) in the first quarter, $24.3 million ($15.7 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $1.92 per share) 
in the third quarter and $25.5 million ($16.4 million to net income attributable to common stockholders or $2.01 per share) 
for the year, primarily associated with the recognition of the majority of the of the gain on the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway 
and the sale of a bank building and an adjacent undeveloped 4.1 acre tract of land in Barton Creek (see Note 11). 

b. Includes a charge of $2.5 million ($1.6 million to net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders or $0.20 per share) 
in the first quarter and for the year for profit participation costs related to the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway.

c. Includes a loss on early extinguishment of debt totaling $0.5 million ($0.3 million to net (loss) income attributable to common 
stockholders or $0.04 per share) in the first quarter and for the year 2017, primarily related to prepayment of the Lakeway 
Construction loan with proceeds from the sale of The Oaks at Lakeway, and $0.8 million ($0.5 million to net loss attributable 
to common stockholders or $0.07 per share) in the first quarter and for the year 2016 related to prepayment of the BoA loan.

d. Includes a tax charge of $7.6 million ($0.93 per share) in the fourth quarter and for the year to reduce the carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets to reflect lower federal corporate tax rates as a result of the Act. 
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

(a)           Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.  Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
with the participation of management, have evaluated the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and 
procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-
K. Based on their evaluation, they have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of 
the end of the period covered by this report.

(b)           Changes in internal control over financial reporting.  There has been no change in our internal control over 
financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2017, that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

(c)           Management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting and the report thereon of BKM 
Sowan Horan, LLP are included in Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Item 9B.  Other Information

Not applicable.

PART III
 
Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to Regulation 14A relating to our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders 
and is incorporated herein by reference. The information required by Item 10 regarding our executive officers 
appears in a separately captioned heading after Item 4. "Executive Officers of the Registrant" in Part I of this report.
 
Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant 
to Regulation 14A relating to our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant 
to Regulation 14A relating to our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant 
to Regulation 14A relating to our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.  

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant 
to Regulation 14A relating to our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1). Financial Statements.

The consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and equity, and the 
consolidated balance sheets are included as part of Part II, Item 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Data."

(a)(2).     Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement schedule is presented below.

 Schedule III – Real Estate, Commercial Leasing Assets and Facilities and Accumulated Depreciation

Schedules other than the one listed below have been omitted since they are either not required, not applicable or
the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.
Notes to Schedule III

(1)  Reconciliation of Real Estate, Commercial Leasing Assets and Facilities:

The changes in real estate, leasing assets and facilities for the years ended December 31, are as follows (in 
thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year $ 425,325 $ 402,609 $ 370,983

Additions and improvements 34,698 29,324 79,168
Dispositions, retirements and other adjustments (76,907) (6,608) (47,542)

Balance, end of year $ 383,116 $ 425,325 $ 402,609

The aggregate net book value for federal income tax purposes as of December 31, 2017, was $373.4 million.

(2)  Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation:

The changes in accumulated depreciation for the years ended December 31, are as follows (in thousands):

 2017 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year $ 33,844 $ 27,471 $ 35,384

Dispositions, retirements and other adjustments (2,871) (1,709) (16,656)
Depreciation expense 7,853 8,082 8,743

Balance, end of year $ 38,826 $ 33,844 $ 27,471

Depreciation of buildings and improvements is calculated over estimated lives of 30 to 40 years.
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(a)(3).      Exhibits.

      Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number

 

Exhibit Title

 Filed with
this Form

10-K

 

Form  File No.  Date Filed
2.1 Agreement of Sale and Purchase, dated February 15,

2017, between Stratus Lakeway Center, LLC and FHF
I Oaks at Lakeway, LLC.

8-K 001-37716 2/21/2017

3.1  Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Stratus
Properties Inc.

   8-A/A  000-19989  8/26/2010

3.2  Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Stratus
Properties Inc., as amended effective August 3, 2017.

  10-Q  001-37716  8/9/2017

4.1  Investor Rights Agreement by and between Stratus
Properties Inc. and Moffett Holdings, LLC dated as of
March 15, 2012.

   8-K  000-19989  3/20/2012

4.2 Assignment and Assumption Agreement by and
among Moffett Holdings, LLC, LCHM Holdings, LLC
and Stratus Properties Inc., dated as of March 3,
2014.

13D 000-19989 3/5/2014

10.1 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement by and
between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus Properties
Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290
Properties, Inc., Overlook at Amarra, L.L.C. and
Comerica Bank dated as of August 21, 2015.

8-K  000-19989 8/26/2015

10.2 Amended and Restated Revolving Promissory Note by
and between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus
Properties Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P.,
Austin 290 Properties, Inc., Overlook at Amarra, L.L.C.
and Comerica Bank dated as of August 21, 2015
($45.0 million revolving line of credit).

8-K 000-19989 8/26/2015

10.3  Amended and Restated Promissory Note by and
between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus Properties
Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290
Properties, Inc., Overlook at Amarra, L.L.C. and
Comerica Bank dated as of August 21, 2015 ($7.5
million letters of credit).

  8-K  000-19989  8/26/2015

10.5 Modification and Extension Agreement by and
between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus Properties
Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290
Properties, Inc. and Comerica Bank dated as of
November 12, 2014.

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.6 Second Modification and Extension Agreement by and
between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus Properties
Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290
Properties, Inc. and Comerica Bank dated as of
February 11, 2015.

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.7 Third Modification and Extension Agreement by and
between Stratus Properties Inc., Stratus Properties
Operating Co., L.P., Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290
Properties, Inc. and Comerica Bank dated as of May
19, 2015.

8-K 000-19989 5/22/2015

10.8 Fourth Modification Agreement between Stratus
Properties Inc., Stratus Properties Operating Co., L.P.,
Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290 Properties, Inc.,
Overlook at Amarra, L.L.C., and Comerica Bank,
dated as of August 21, 2015.

10-K 001-199989 3/16/2017

10.9 Fifth Modification Agreement between Stratus
Properties Inc., Stratus Properties Operating Co., L.P.,
Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290 Properties, Inc., The
Villas at Amarra Drive, L.L.C., and Comerica Bank,
dated as of December 30, 2015.

10-K 001-199989 3/16/2017
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10.10 Sixth Modification Agreement between Stratus

Properties Inc., Stratus Properties Operating Co., L.P.,
Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290 Properties, Inc., The
Villas at Amarra Drive, L.L.C., and Comerica Bank,
dated as of August 12, 2016.

10-Q 001-37716 11/9/2016

10.11 Seventh Modification Agreement between Stratus
Properties Inc., Stratus Properties Operating Co., L.P.,
Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290 Properties, Inc., The
Villas at Amarra Drive, L.L.C., and Comerica Bank,
dated as of August 3, 2017.

10-Q 001-37716 8/9/2017

10.12 Eighth Modification Agreement between Stratus
Properties Inc., Stratus Properties Operating Co., L.P.,
Circle C Land, L.P., Austin 290 Properties, Inc., The
Villas at Amarra Drive, L.L.C., and Comerica Bank,
dated as of November 7, 2017.

10-Q 001-37716 11/9/2017

10.13 Loan Agreement, dated January 5, 2016, between
Stratus Block 21, LLC, as borrower, and Goldman
Sachs Mortgage Company, as lender, as amended
through January 27, 2016.

10-K 000-19989 3/15/2016

10.14 Promissory Note A-1, dated February 1, 2016,
between Stratus Block 21, LLC and Goldman Sachs
Mortgage Company.

10-K 000-19989 3/15/2016

10.15 Promissory Note A-2, dated February 1, 2016,
between Stratus Block 21, LLC and Goldman Sachs
Mortgage Company.

10-K 000-19989 3/15/2016

10.16  Development Agreement effective as of August 15,
2002, between Circle C Land Corp. and City of Austin.

   10-Q  000-19989  11/14/2002

10.17 First Amendment dated June 21, 2004, Second
Amendment dated November 9, 2004, and Third
Amendment dated March 2, 2005, to Development
Agreement effective as of August 15, 2002, between
Circle C Land Corp. and City of Austin.

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.18 Construction Loan Agreement by and between
Lantana Place, L.L.C., as borrower, and Southside
Bank, as lender, dated April 28, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 3/5/2017

10.19 Promissory Note by and between Lantana Place,
L.L.C. and Southside Bank dated April 28, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 3/5/2017

10.20 Construction Loan Agreement by and between
College Station 1892 Properties, L.L.C. and Southside
Bank, dated September 1, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 9/7/2017

10.21 Promissory Note by and between College Station
1892 Properties, L.L.C. and Southside Bank, dated
September 1, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 9/7/2017

10.22 First amendment to Construction Loan Agreement by
and between Lantana Place, L.L.C., as borrower, and
Southside Bank, as lender, dated December 13, 2017.

X

10.23 Amended and Restated Construction Loan Agreement
by and between Santal I, L.L.C., as borrower, and
Comerica Bank, as lender, dated September 11, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 9/14/2017

10.24 Amended and Restated Installment Note by and
between Santal I, L.L.C. and Comerica Bank, dated
September 11, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 9/14/2017

10.25 Installment Note by and between Santal I, L.L.C. and
Comerica Bank, dated September 11, 2017.

8-K 001-37716 9/14/2017
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10.26 Board Representation and Standstill Agreement dated

as of January 11, 2017 by and among Stratus
Properties Inc., Oasis Management Company Ltd.,
Oasis Investments II Master Fund Ltd. and Oasis
Capital Partners (Texas) Inc.

8-K 001-37716 1/11/2017

10.27* Stratus Properties Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan. 8-K 001-37716 5/18/2017

10.28* Stratus Properties Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated.

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.29* Stratus Properties Inc. 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated.

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.30* Form of Notice of Grant of Nonqualified Stock Options
under the Stratus Properties Inc. stock incentive plans
(adopted January 2011).

10-K 000-19989 3/31/2011

10.31* Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
under the Stratus Properties Inc. stock incentive plans
(adopted January 2011).

10-K 000-19989 3/31/2011

10.32* Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
under the Stratus Properties Inc. Stock Incentive Plan
for Non-Employee Director Grants (adopted August
2014).

10-K 000-19989 3/16/2015

10.33* Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
under the Stratus Properties Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive
Plan (adopted August 2015).

10-Q 000-19989 11/9/2015

10.34* Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement under the Stratus Properties Inc. 2013
Stock Incentive Plan (adopted March 2016).

10-Q 001-37716 11/9/2016

10.35* Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
under the Stratus Properties Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive
Plan (adopted March 2016).

10-Q 001-37716 11/9/2016

10.36* Stratus Properties Inc. Performance Incentive Awards
Program, as amended, effective December 30, 2008.

10-Q 000-19989 5/5/2009

10.37* Stratus Properties Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan for
Non-Employee Directors, as amended and restated.

10-Q 000-19989 5/10/2007

10.38* Stratus Properties Inc. Director Compensation. X

10.39* Severance and Change of Control Agreement
between Stratus Properties Inc. and William H.
Armstrong III, effective as of April 1, 2016.

10-Q 001-37716 5/10/2016

10.40* Severance and Change of Control Agreement
between Stratus Properties Inc. and Erin D. Pickens,
effective as of April 1, 2016.

10-Q 001-37716 5/10/2016

21.1  List of subsidiaries.  X

23.1  Consent of BKM Sowan Horan, LLP.  X

24.1  Certified resolution of the Board of Directors of Stratus
Properties Inc. authorizing this report to be signed on
behalf of any officer or director pursuant to a Power of
Attorney.

 X

24.2  Powers of Attorney pursuant to which this report has
been signed on behalf of certain officers and directors
of Stratus Properties Inc.

 X   

31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

 X   
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31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
 X   

32.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

 X   

32.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

 X   

101.INS XBRL Instance Document. X

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. X

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase. X   

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase. X   

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase. X   

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase. X

_______________________

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 16, 2018.

STRATUS PROPERTIES INC.

By:      /s/  William H. Armstrong III_______
William H. Armstrong III
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated on March 16, 2018.

/s/  William H. Armstrong III  Chairman of the Board, President
William H. Armstrong III  and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
   

/s/  Erin D. Pickens  Senior Vice President
Erin D. Pickens

 
 and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
   

*  Vice President and Controller
C. Donald Whitmire, Jr.  (Principal Accounting Officer)

* Director
Ella G. Benson

* Director
James E. Joseph

*  Director
James C. Leslie   

   
*  Director

Michael D. Madden   
   

* Director
Charles W. Porter   

* Director
John C. Schweitzer

*By:              /s/  William H. Armstrong__                                                                
William H. Armstrong III

Attorney-in-Fact
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